City of Topeka & Shawnee County

JOINT
+ ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT
ORGANIZATION

Clorted For C‘?;'*ﬁwﬁé

JEDO Board of Directors
Agenda for Wednesday, February 11, 2015
6:00 p.m.
Topeka City Council Chambers

1. APPROVAL of Minutes from the meeting of December 10, 2014 (Action Item)
2, A PRESENTATION on the JEDO Infrastructure Report
3. APPROVAL of Incentive Contract Project Blue Sky (Action Item)

4. A PRESENTATION on the GO Topeka 4™ Quarter 2014 Year End Report and
Upcoming 2015 Economic Development Highlights

5. A PRESENTATION on the GO Topeka Target Market Study

6. DISCUSSION regarding the process to develop JEDO performance measurements for
publically allocated economic development funds

7. Public Comment

8. Adjournment

Public Comment Policy: Comment from members of the public shall be entertained on each
actionable agenda item and at the end of each meeting. Comment shall be limited to topics
relevant to JEDO business. Members of the public wishing to speak must notify the City Clerk
before 5:00 p.m. on the date of the meeting via email at cclerk@topeka.org or call 785-368-3940.
This requirement shall not apply to items added during the meeting. Members of the public will
be given four (4) minutes to speak and must maintain proper decorum relating to public
meetings.

Agenda: Agendas are furnished at least five (5) business days prior to each meeting and posted
on the City of Topeka web page at www.topeka.org/JEDO and the Shawnee County web page at
www.snco.us/jedo.

To make arrangements for special accommodations please call 785-368-3940 or 785-368-3941.
A 48-hour advance notice is preferred.




City of Topeka & Shawnee County

A5 JOINT
T ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT
ORGANIZATION

Ctrted fFor gﬁ"ww ZA

February 11, 2015
JEDO Board Meeting

Public Comment

Item No. 1 - Minutes
1. Joseph Ledbetter
2. Carol Marple

Item No. 3 — Incentive Contract Project Blue Sky
1. Joseph Ledbetter
2. Carol Marple

Item No. 7 — Public Comment
Joseph Ledbetter

Carol Marple

Scaott Griffith

Jeff Wietharn

Allan Towle

Lazone Grays

2 e i

Public Comment. Comment from members of the public shall be entertained on each
actionable agenda item and at the end of each meeting. Comment shall be limited to topics
directly relevant to JEDO business. Members of the public wishing to speak must notify the
City Clerk before 5 p.m. on the date of the meeting. This requirement shall not apply to
items added during the meeting.

Time limits. Members of the public shall be limited to four minutes unless the Board, by
majority vote, extends the limitation. Debate, question/answer dialogue or discussion with
Board members will not count towards the four minute time limitation.




City of Topeka & Shawnee County

g~  JOINT

__/ ECONOMIC
47 DEVELOPMENT
4" ORGANIZATION

Urted For gmw&%

Agenda Item No. 1.

December 10, 2014
JEDO Board Meeting Minutes




Joint Economic Development Organization Board Minutes
December 10,2014

City of Topeka Council Chambers, 214 SE 7% Street, Topeka, Kansas, Wednesday, December 10, 2014,

The Joint Economic Development Organization (JEDO) Board members met at 6:00 p.m. with the

following voting Board members present: Shawnee County Commissioners Shelly Buhler, Kevin Cook
and Bob Archer, City of Topeka Mayor Larry Wolgast, Deputy City Mayor Denise Everhart, City
Councilmember Karen Hiller and City Councilmember Nathan Schmidt.

The following nonvoting JEDO Board member were present: City Councilmembers TJ Brown and Sylvia
Ortiz. The following nonvoting JEDO Board members were absent: City Councilmembers Michelle De
La Isla, Chad Manspeaker, Elaine Schwartz and Richard Harmon.

Others present who presented and/or spoke before the Board: Rich Eckert, Shawnee County Counselor;
Betty Greiner, Shawnee County Financial Administrator; Doug Kinsinger, President/CEO of GO Topeka
Partnership/Greater Topeka Chamber of Commerce; Scott Smathers, Vice-President of Economic
Development for GO Topeka; Glenda Washington, Vice-President of Entrepreneurial and Minority
Business Development for GO Topeka; Brad Owen, CPA, Mize Houser & Company, P.A.; Jeff Wietharn,
Legal Counsel for GO Topeka; Joseph Ledbetter, Attorney at Law; Carol Marple; John Hunter, Executive
Director, Heartland Visioning; Gina Milsap, Executive Director, Topeka & Shawnee County Public
Library; Lucky DeFries, GO Topeka Past Board Chair, Attorney Coffman, DeFries & Nothern; Allan
Towle, GO Topeka Board Chair, Fidelity State Bank & Trust Co.; Kurt Kuta, GO Topeka Board Member,
CoreFirst Bank & Trust President & CEO; Camille Nohe, League of Women Voters.

ITEM NO. 3: ACTION ITEM: Approval of the’ Septembér 10, 2014 JEDO Board meeting minutes.

Commissioner Cook stated he believes the minutes were distributed to the Board prior to the meeting
being called. Has the Board had an opportunity to review the minutes? Are there any corrections that the
Board notes? : ‘

Councilwoman Hiller moved to approve the September 10, 2014 JEDO Board meeting minutes.
Commissioner Archer seconded.

Public Comment:
Joseph Ledbetter indicated that he would pass on public comment for this agenda item.
Following roll call vote, motion carried unanimously.

ITEM NO. 4: PRESENTATION: JEDO 3rd Quarter Cash Statement — Betty Greiner, Director,
Shawnee County Audit Finance,

Betty Greiner, Financial Administrator for Shawnee County is here as Treasurer of the JEDO Finance
Committee and has the JEDO 3™ Quarter Cash Statement as of September 30, 2014 to present as follows:

Total Receipts: $11,231,019.28
City of Topeka = $5,758,353.64
Shawnee County = $5,472,363.31
Interest Income =- $302.33

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
1




Total Disbursements: $14,918,235.75

City of Topeka
Topeka Blvd Bridge Debt Service = $3,240,650.00
SW 21* Street — City Limits to Urish = $140,000.00

Shawnee County
County Bridges = $1,500,000.00
SE 45" Street Adams to California = $4,432,174.66
NW 46" St & N Topeka Blvd = $1,850,665.07

GO Topeka = $3,749,999.94

Publication Expense for RFP = $378.72

Audit Charges = $4,235.00

Bank Charges = $132.36

Net Receipts (Disbursements) = ($3,687,216.47)
Bank Balance on January 1, 2014 = $6,897,910.67
Balance as of September 30, 2014 = $3,210,694.20

ITEM NO. 5: ACTION ITEM: Approve Service Contract for JEDO 2014 Audit — Betty Greiner,
Shawnee County Audit Finance. ‘

Betty Greiner, Financial Administrator for Shawnee County is here as Treasurer of the JEDO Finance
Committee. The JEDO Finance Committee is asking for approval to engage the services of Cochran
Head Vick & Co., P.A. for the 2014 JEDO Audit. As they will recall last year, we had an extensive
review of the correct method of reporting the fund balance. And that review was not only with the JEDO
auditors but it also included the City of Topeka auditors as well as the Shawnee County auditors. The
recommendation of the JEDO Finance Committee is to retain Cochran Head Vick & Co., P.A. as our
auditors for 2014 for proper continuity and implementation of that reporting. Their proposed fee for the
2014 audit is $4,500. That is compared to the 2013 fee of $4,325 or an additional $175. So she asks for
their approval and she would be happy to answer any questions.

Mayor Wolgast moved to approve the service contract with Cochran Head Vick & Co., P.A. for the
JEDO 2014 Audit. Commissioner Archer seconded.

Public Comment:
Joseph Ledbetter indicated that he would pass on public comment for this agenda item.
Following roll call vote, motion carriied unanimously.

ITEM NO. 6: ACTION ITEM: Approve 2015 Economic Development Strategic Business Plan and
Budget — GO Topeka staff,

Doug Kinsinger, President/CEO of GO Topeka Partnership/Greater Topeka Chamber of Commerce stated
tonight members of his team are going to give an overview of the Strategic Plan and Budget for them to
consider. Couple of things he would like to reference to remind them. We thank you for your support
earlier this year when they gave their trust and confidence in awarding GOTopeka a three year contract
starting in 2015. We take that responsibility very seriously and we have been working hard this year and
will continue to be working hard for them in the future.

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
2




To give them just a quick update before we go into the next year’s plan and budget, just to give
them a sense, for this year we have had 33 new projects that we have opened with new business
attraction. Roughly one-fourth of those were in the manufacturing area and a little less than 20%
of those were in back office. The remainder of those inquiries or prospects have been in a variety
of other areas all the way from logistics to a variety of other companies. One thing he does want
to emphasize, this year we have seen the size of interest from the companies we are speaking to
increase. So in the past where we saw many more inquiries or prospects looking at 5, 10, 20, 30
acres, over half of our prospects this year were looking at sites that are 100 acres or more and he
just wanted to make them aware of that.

Now a little bit of good news before we get into the Plan and Budget, and that is certainly new
business is important, but again existing business and even all the new companies that we have
attracted to town that are here now and growing are equally important. We’ve been working with
them and continuing to help make sure that they stay here and grow. Some good news he wanted
to share that just came out last week. The Kansas Department of Labor presented their October
workforce and unemployment numbers and for year-to-date October, 2014, we increased 2,511
employees in October, 2014 compared to October, 2013. Actually we were tied in the State for
the biggest drop in our unemployment rate, we went from 5.2% to 4.0%. And that’s roughly,
while that is a 1.2% drop, when you look at the percentage of unemployment, we lowered our
number of unemployed people by about 23% which is a great thing in the last year. But a lot of
credit goes out for a lot of the great companies that we have helped attract and retain here. So he
would like Scott Smathers to come forward and he is going to give an overview of the Strategic
Plan and we will see if there are questions related to that and then we will have the Budget
presentation and both Mr. Smathers and Brad Owen will walk through the Budget.

Mayor Wolgast questioned if the materials they received tonight any different than what they received
earlier last week because he has notes written down.

Mr. Kinsinger indicated yes they are exactly the same materials.

Scott Smathers, Vice-President of Economic ‘Development for GO Topeka presented the following
regarding the Strategic Plan;

New Business Attraction;

«  Focused on target markets (currently under evaluation)
+ Wil be updating marketing materials
.+ Moving forward with a new website
+  About to start a Labor Study
«  Growing our regional partnerships with organizations and educational entities
«  Expanding quality site selector visits including an in-community event
«  Will complete signage & landscape needs for Kanza Fire

Commissioner Cook asked that when he says they are going to do some improvements to Kanza Fire,
what specifically are they looking at?

Mr. Smathers replied they are looking at entryway signs, lighting up the corners a little more. If you have
been there at night it is a little dark at that turn in when you are heading into Mars and the truck stop. So
we are trying to see if we can improve the look and feel of the entryways coming in and landscaping.

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
3




Commissioner Cook questioned if they have a cost in mind or is that something we will take up during
the budget?

Mr, Smathers indicated it is in the budget.

Existing Business/Workforce Development:

« Continue to support our existing businesses
v Coordinate group efforts
v Headquarters visits
v Individual business assistance
«  Planning to hold a Financial Services Summit
+  Moving forward with Manufacturer’s in the Classroom
« Continuing to participate in the M-Tech program
+ Looking at ways to expand welding training programs
«  Working on expanding our youth training program and potentially young professional
development opportunities
« Evaluating new programs as they relate to veterans & separately, the reintegration of
previous offenders
+  Continue the Washburn Tech scholarslnp program
v" 47 scholarships
v" $18,500 awarded
v" Type of degree/certification
+ 27 medical
* 17 manufacturing, equlpment machmery
+ = 3 culinary

Commissioner Cook asked if Mr. Smathers could give a refresher on the Manufacturers in the Classroom
program. '

Mr. Smathers stated basically what we have with the MTech program is where we were training people in
the food processing industry and in other industries like Goodyear and Innovia have participated. The
Manufacturers in the Classroom program is where we are actually going into the high school classrooms
at this stage of the game and letting them know this is what manufacturing is like. Because as we have
talked about multiple times here what manufacturing was back when he worked in manufacturing when
was younger is different than what they are doing right now. It is a lot more automated, it’s a lot more
computers involved, it’s a whole different skill set and there are a lot more robotics involved and things
like that. So what we are really trying to do is explain to them this is what it is, what it looks like, what’s
expected and it’s both the good and the bad. You know you tell them they are still going to have to show
up for work, they are going to have to be on time and have to have their badge. So that’s part of it but it’s
also not just sitting there and continually repeating the same things over and over, there is a real skill set
to the manufacturing and that is really what we are trying to get across as well as the money that is
involved.

Commissioner Cook stated that it was noted we have a real need for welders in the community and that is
one field that we maybe are a little bit short on when it comes to labor. In the scholarships that were
awarded (27 medical, 17 manufacturing, equipment, machinery and 3 culinary), why aren’t we seeing
more scholarships for welding?

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
4




Mr. Smathers replied there is some welding in that manufacturing piece, it was included. There were a
couple of AST students. They are the people that really have the skill set to be able to do any kind of
repair work at a manufacturing facility so they know welding, electric, plumbing; just across the board
they have the skill set and there was one or two other welders that were included as well.

Commissioner Cook asked as we move forward and talking about the budget later are they anticipating
making recommendations that we look at more welding scholarships or more welders towards that labor
force?

Mr, Smathers yes they ate.

Councilman Schmidt stated he was curious out the Manufacturers in the Classroom and MTech programs
and at looking at ways to expand welding training. Have we explored any incorporation with the new 712
Innovations Makerspace concept. He can see a lot of parallels between Manufacturers in the Classroom
and the programs that we have at Washburn University as well as having people working in makerspaces.
Whether it’s one providing students to the other so that they can learn how to make things or a sharing of
equipment and facilities. He knows 712 Innovations is still getting off the ground so he understands that
those relationships aren’t developed yet but has that been discussed or explored at all?

Mr. Smathers replied that it really hasn’t at this stage in the game. He thinks it is something we can look
at. One of the things we have talked about though is trying to tie it in with the schools. Letting kids come
in and take a look at it. Where the facility is at right now there is going to be a limit as far as how much
welding can actually go on in that particular area.. As far as the manufacturing and things like that, yes
that is an area that we are going to have some equipment that people can come and do some prototyping
of ideas and there will be classes offered as well on some of that equipment that will also help them.

Councilman Schmidt responded that he is talkin'g more of a joint-relationship when you have people
working in the makerspace, but he can see a relationship where you have enrollment in a program at
Washburn Tech as well as in the makerspace and working together to share facilities and to share students
and ideas. ; ' '

Mr. Smathers replied in that case the answer is yes. They have had both discussions with Washburn
University as well as Washburn Tech in regards to how maybe they can tie in with 712 Innovations.
Those discussions have been just in the preliminary stages at this point but yes discussions have been had
with both entities in regard to that.

Councilman Brown stated that he said they were evaluating new programs and maybe they are not ready
to do this but could he perhaps go maybe a layer deeper on their intentions in regard to the veterans
programs and the reintegration of offenders programs.

Mr. Smathers responded that in regards to the veterans programs, as he stated he has talked with Mr.
Ledbetter who gave him the names of some people he thought we ought to talk to. We have reached out
and had an initial discussion with the Topeka Rescue Mission and seeing if there are any veterans on there
and he has talked to them and will be going back and talking with them. He has talked to Washburn Tech
regarding potentially how we might be able to tie into that as well with their programs. There are rules
associated with the veterans programs that he still has to learn. You have to be very careful when giving
them money or they can lose some of their veteran money although we might be able to come up with a
way, for instance, we can acquire the books for them or something like that. So there are various angles
that we have. We have not gone into a great deal of detail on the veterans program on either side because
that program has not been authorized by JEDO yet, so didn’t want to go too far down the road without the
blessing from the JEDO Board.

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
5




As far as the reintegration of offenders program, we have had a couple meetings with Mr. Grays.
And his idea, he has pulled together a group of people, which he believes includes Councilman
Manspeaker, and they are looking at the idea of how to set somebody up to learn the construction
trade. So he is trying to figure out a way to tie in that program. We have looked at it and said we
could probably look at coming up with funds to Jook at the person to do the training, possibly the
materials and books. Mr. Grays has a pretty aggressive program that he is Jooking at trying to put
together. And if he can do that it would pull in multiple entities throughout the state and the area
to try to help with that as well. Mr. Grays is much more knowledgeable on that as well as others,
so right now he (Mr. Smathers) is just one on a committee looking to see what resources we can
provide and fill a void that is there.

Councilwoman Hiller stated that he was discussing two different programs. One is the Manufactures in
the Classroom and the program at Washburn Tech which is the MTech program. She has questions about
both. In the classroom, how old is that program?

Mr. Smathers 1esponded that they have only done some pi ototype plesentations and have been tweaking
the program. The idea is actually to have industry people go in and give that program as well. That is
one that is just being launched.

Councilwoman Hiller asked if they have metrics that they started with on that program in terms of how
many students usually go into manufacturing plofesswns and how many they want to see go in and ways
in mind to track that?

Mr. Smathers replied that they have not established that yet. .

Councilwoman Hiller asked if they have any metrics in place on the WashTech program in terms of what
the need is?

Mr. Smathers responded the need from our business point of view is from the MTech program it’s been
that the businesses have been hiring the people. Before they had the last class finished, through the
people who had taken that program, they had 50% of the people who had taken the MTech program had
gotten a job. Now not all of them had gone into the food business but they had all gotten a job because
part of that training program is where you are giving them training on the basics of just manufacturing in
general. From talking to our businesses, the demand that our business said they were going through, just
from the food manufacturers, was that they need as a group probably anywhere from 150 to 200
employees a year. So that is why the program was initially established because we knew the demand was
there from the businesses for hiring. Now does every business hire just MTech people? Absolutely not
and they all have their own hiring process and their own time schedule. But it was simply an opportunity
for them and a need that we heard from them and that’s how it got started really was from the businesses
saying we need people, what can you do to get us trained people who have the food safety and the basic
manufacturing skills. Because by going through the MTech program they are able to hit the ground
running faster than the company having to take them through all the basic training that they are going to
have to go through as well from a safety point of view

As far as the Manufacturers in the Classroom goes, he knows that we have a little over about 60&
of our population he believes that does not have colleges degrees. And from that point of view
that’s why we sit there and say there has got to be a demand, whether it is manufacturing or
whatever in that area. That’s why we have kind of made the assumption that there is a demand
there, plus we have been tying it in again with our existing businesses. So anyone who has an
instance in, and he is just going to pick one, Goodyear, they have been heavily involved in this

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
6




and have been great partners with us. If you have an interest in working at Goodyear, their guy
Whitney gets out there and is one of the people who does the presentation and so it gives people
an idea and it helps Goodyear as well because it gets the word out about them to the people and
says hey maybe you want to think about coming to apply at our organization when you finish
high school.

Councilwoman Hiller asked, and she may have missed it, there was a lot of information in the plan. But
there was quite a bit of discussion about the robotics programs at Highland Park as well as at Washburn
Tech in recent years. It seems like she saw it scratched through in one of these documents. How is that
program going?

Mr. Smathers responded that it is going ok. The school district, USD 501, had a super star guy that was
there and we had actually been moving down the road and tying that in with Washburn Tech to where
people were going to be able to earn credits in taking the class at 501 and they were going to figure out a
way we could roll it into Washburn Tech credits. So we were moving down that road. He knew the high
school was having to find a new person. Unfortunately the gentleman left to go be a professor at Kansas
State. It was a great partnership and to be honest with you we haven’t spent a great deal of time going
back on that. But we can look into it and get it back going for them if they would like.

Glenda Washington, Vice-President of Entrepreneurial and Minority Business Development for GO
Topeka stated that she met with a young lady today that they have place over at Highland Park so we
were actually doing some more synergy with that program so it should be coming back online.

Entrepreneurial and Minority Business Development:

+  Continue to market and develop the loan fund
v’ 2 new loans this quarter ;
v" Loan amount expansion has helped
«  Provide training programs to both new & existing businesses
+  Assist individuals & businesses as needed
+  Expand data availability to both developers & business owners
+ " Continue improving events:
v Small Business Development Conference
v" Women’s Professional Forum
v Small Business Awards Banquet
+ Support 712 Innovations development
»  Expand the Washburn/Washburn Tech pitch competition
+  Support the SBDC efforts
+ Look at creating a forgivable loan fund for small and medium sized businesses
«  Continue efforts to improve small business purchasing and procurement potential
« Look at other potential programs to expand small business development in our market
(e.g. commercial kitchen)

Councilman Schmidt asked regarding the expansion of the Washburn pitch program, which he followed
the progress of that and thought it was a pretty amazing program. How are we looking to expand that?
Are we looking at expanding it to universities in the area, expanding it outside the university or what are
the ideas for expanding that program?

Mr. Smathers responded that they haven’t had too many discussions on it since it just finished but a few
that come to his mind right off the bat - #1 Washburn was a tremendous partner on this and we could not
have done it without them and they have been a great partner. We were heavily involved with the

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
7




Washburn Business School and he would like to see if maybe we can look at making sure the other
schools are aware of it as well. Washburn Tech had one entry in it he believes and he would really like to
see about marketing it and can get them doing it a little more. And then you have a question, what about
the graduate students? We kind of set it up for the undergraduates but there are graduate students at
Washburn University, we actually got contacted by one of them and they will be meeting with him next
week hopefully in regards to some ideas that he has. He will joke about it but this gentleman is actually a
lawyer but they do business too. He brings some very good points that they are investing and creating a
lot of businesses, even a lot of the students that go to law school don’t want to practice law necessarily.
They are doing it as part of their business. So those are just some. Would we look at expanding it to
other universities, possibly. He is not ruling that out by any means. Initially he thinks there are still
opportunities for growing it here to start with and then maybe we look at it going outside.

Mayor Wolgast stated that a number of the programs and plans that he described here are plans they are
considering and looking at to go in the direction of, which he thinks is important. In the budget they are
presenting tonight, are the means there to do these things that they are looking at without having to come
back to get permission from the JEDO Board?

Mr. Smathers responded that yes they have built these items in and he has been asked to go over the
operational part of the budget with them as well so he will cover that at that time. But yes we have built
approval of those programs into this budget for their approval at this time.

Councilwoman Hiller asked if we could go back to the Pitch Program which was just an outstanding
success as an event. It got a lot of people out and it really worked well. How does that fit in their overall
goals? What is the purpose of doing that and what are they looking to get out of it?

Mr. Smathers replied that they are looking to get, especially the first year for us, 1 or 2 new business was
going to be a home run for us. And the fact that 2 new businesses are already kicking off of it is
wonderful for us. And what we are hoping to do is get more of those businesses that submitted, to
actually come in for help. What we are tlymg to get across to people is that even if they didn’t win, that
shouldn’t stop them from coming in and seeing us and saying “how can you help me get started” and
that’s why we are looking at some of these other programs we are also putting in place because to be
honest with you we are really trying to generate new small businesses out of it.

Councilwotnan Hiller replied just to follow up - good. Good answer. Are those 2 business that got
started businesses that would not have gotten started if they had not had this opportunity?

Mr. Smathers responded he wouldn’t want to say that is the case. He doesn’t want to speak for them but
if nothing else what we are hoping it did was it helped move them along maybe a little more because they
were able to put together the plan, now we have resources allocated to them that hopefully will help them
with some of the other things that they are trying to achieve.

Operational Budget Overview:

Mr. Smathers stated from the budget point of view, he will start at page 59 of the packet. Our Existing
Business budget stayed pretty similar to what we had previously. The primary difference is that we have
added in some finances for the Financial Services Seminar and so that is why that budget is a little higher,
we cut a couple other areas but that’s really the big difference in that particular section. For Existing
Employer Support we had previously budgeted about $12,000 and we have about $28,000 now allocated
to that now to try to help us. Part of what we are looking at trying to do there is get somebody to come in
and actually speak relating into that seminar as well and normally there are expenses associated with that.

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
8




Unless they would like him to, he won’t go through each line item as it is very similar to their previous
budget.

Commissioner Cook asked would there be any highlights that he would really want to touch on.

Mr. Smathers responded really that was the primary one. We still do our two Headquarter meetings, we
are still going to be out meeting with the industries, we still want to do events where we celebrate their
successes. We have talked about the successes of our businesses before and we would like to continue in
doing those items. So all that will still stay. Unfortunately we lost Jo Feldmann and so we are in the
process now of trying to find somebody new to fill that void.

Commissioner Cook asked given that are there any questions that anyone might have regarding the
Business Plan Components.

Deputy Mayor Everhart stated she is not sure if this is exactly the right time but she assumes he is talking
about the budget as well as the business plan. She thinks we should be proceeding and she thinks it is
probably in the best interest to proceed with the budget but she believes as a Board, this Board should set
up and establish a list of its own specific performance measures that can be used to determine or judge
whether or not GO Topeka is meeting the requirements that JEDO has and what their accomplishments
are. And she thinks JEDO could do that by having and identifying specific objectives with targeted
activity levels that would be something that JEDO as a Board have put together. She thinks then we can
actual look and judge the results to see whether or not it is meeting the objectives of this Board. So she
would like to make that motion and also include that within 90 days JEDO would put together its own set
of objectives.

Commissioner Cook asked if she could clarify the motion for him just a little bit or narrow it down.

Deputy Mayor Everhart responded that her Motion would be that within the next 90 days, the JEDO
Board establish performance measures to ensure that the GO Topeka Board is meeting the JEDO
Board’s objectives. '

Commissioner Archer asked if she had a list of objectives and metrics. It’s always good to make a
proposal but without a starting point or a list to begin with it can be very difficult to do. And it is sort of a
late date to be doing something like that for 2015. So he is not sure if he understands the purpose.

Deputy Mayor Everhart replied that is why she within the next 90 days. And no she did not have it
tonight because it’s not something she thinks that just one member of this Board should put together. She
thinks it is something as a Board that we can put together by jointly working on it or submitting
suggestions, etc. There has been a lot of comment about whether the Board itself is putting anything
together to look at the merits. It’s not saying that GO Topeka hasn’t performed well it’s just that then we
are doing our own examination if we have a specific list of objectives that we want to see and a set of
performance measures to do that as to what activity levels they’ve been doing. So that is her intent. She
thinks it is probably a good idea because we are the Board that is responsible for looking over and
measuring.

Commissioner Archer responded he agrees that is a great idea. Something like that needs to have a
champion. Needs somebody to make proposals, make lists, coordinate the efforts, facilitate the process.
Is that something that Ms. Everhart would want to take on?

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
9




Deputy Mayor Everhart stated she would certainly be willing to try to coordinate and work with other
members of the Board to put something together for review within the next 90 days, if there is a second
on the motion and if there is an interest.

Commissioner Cook stated he might also comment that he mentioned doing an RFP and then he ended up
being in charge of it so sometimes it happens that way. But there is a Motion before the Board, is there a
second?

Councilwoman Hiller seconded.

Commissioner Cook asked that the Motion again, try to make sure he gets it in the right format, is that the
JEDO Board, within the next 90 days, would establish a list of performance measures regarding the
strategic plan. Is that correct?

Deputy Mayor Everhart responded yes and how the performance has been from GO Topeka and whether
they are meeting their goals.

Commissioner Buhler asked would this be in addition to the performance measurements that have been
laid out to us tonight. So we would have another list of performance measurements? If she is correct, we
have the ability to alter the ones GO Topeka has presented. = She what she hears is that we have
performance measurements listed in the plan but that we are going to have another list of performance
measurements.

Deputy Mayor Everhart stated she thinks that as a Board we could have a separate list from what GO
Topeka has presented.

Commissioner Buhler replied that according to contract we have with GO Topeka, she would think if they
are abiding by that contract, she doesn’t know why we would have another list of performance
measurements. She is just wanting clarification. She certainly agrees with performance measurements
and they are very important but she just wants to make sure we are clear on what we are going to do.

Commissioner Cook asked for his own clarification, as the JEDO Board meets on a quarterly basis and
we do an oversight of what GO Topeka has done, doesn’t that serve as our check in as to whether they are
meeting their expectations and meeting the strategic plan already? He is failing to see what additional
metrics there would be that would show us what we are already doing.

Deputy Mayor Everhart replied that when we haven’t developed them yet, that would be hard to
determine as to whether or not there would be other things. But there has been a lot of discussion, at least
from the City’s side, as to whether or not as a Board we are actually reviewing and looking and there are a
lot of changes in economic development and how you proceed on economic development within a
community. So she thinks the fact that we would maybe determine if we had some structure that we
wanted to put in place and some performance measures that we thought might also be important. Not to
say that this replaces or changes or alters what has already been presented by GO Topeka but she thinks
that is probably a process that we ought to start thinking about having in place. She doesn’t know how
else to explain it. If they don’t think we need to do it, that’s fine. She has made the motion and she
doesn’t know what else to add.

Councilwoman Hiller stated that now that we have seconded the motion and have it moving she is thrilled
to hear this motion. She had not talked with Deputy Mayor Everhart in advance and was going to make a
motion like this herself. In terms of one of the questions that was asked earlier in terms of the chart that
we have that we look at. As far as she is concerned, having worked with outcomes and performance

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
10




measurements as a manager for a long time, pretty much everything that is in the chart that we have that’s
in the performance measurements column is simply an action step. It might be something that a manager
would assign to their employees and make sure that they do but it does not measure the goals that we have
or the outcomes that we have. You know, did businesses grow; did jobs that would not have otherwise
been created get created with this activity? And they are wonderful measures because they help you look
back. And even if you have two activities, both of which are well executed and they are well done, if one
of them advances you towards that performance goal, it did create jobs, it did expand business in the
community and the other one was a wonderful event but it did not add value to that goal, then it might be
something that you then go back to and say well that was good activity but it didn’t help so we are going
to focus our activities more in other ways to achieve those job development and business growth goals.

The question she would have, and she thinks it is wonderful that Deputy Mayor Everhart has
offered to chair something like this, the only question she would have is whether we as a JEDO
Board can come up with those goals ourselves of whether we would want to seek some
professional assistance to do that. Not only right now but maybe long term. We are looking at 17
more years of doing this economic development and so if she could ask the question across the
board to her colleague, does she feel that we could do that at least this round on our own?

Deputy Mayor Everhart responded she would hope so and she appreciates Counc1lw01nan Hiller’s
comments. As they all know she is not exactly well and so she feels like she is not being as coherent as
she should be about this. But Councilwoman Hiller said some of the things well that she was trying fo
say. She thinks that within both the City and the County there are people we can rely on and get advice
from to make sure we are putting together something to bring back to the entire Board. And that’s how
she would hope that the Board would proceed. She doesn’t think we need to hire consultants or anything
like that to do this. A lot of expertise, Commissioner Archer is good with figures. So she is sure among
ourselves as well as City and County staff we should be able to do this.

Commissioner Cook asked whether'Deputy Mayor Everhart was anticipating that then over the next 90
days, as we look at upcoming meetings in February, 2015, that we would be taking that action as a Board
as to how to we measure whether GO Topeka is meeting our expectations or not.

Deputy Mayokr'Everhart respondéd that she thinks that would be the intent if we could agree on what we
needed to establish as a Board and we could look at them then.

Commissioner Cook asked is that then part of GO Topeka’s strategic plan or is that part of JEDO’s?

Deputy Mayor Everhart replied tha‘t,she would think it would be part of JEDO’s. She thinks the intent is
that we have been asked many times by the community that we are the Board that oversees and that
maybe we need to have our own separate function that does that.

Mayor Wolgast stated he was hearing this for the first time so just to get it clear again, Deputy Mayor
Everhart is really talking about performance standards on the plan that is being presented tonight, correct?
He knows there has been some discussion about should we JEDO, GO Topeka look at the goals of GO
Topeka or of JEDO. Rather than look at only performance standards for this plan, maybe we should look
at is JEDO going, with GO Topeka and it’s plan, the direction that JEDO wants to go. You see the
difference? He doesn’t’ know if we need to do more for this until we know where we want to go or what
is the future for economic development in the world, in the United States, are there new trends that we
should be aware of that maybe we should be directing things toward. Perhaps we do that before we look
at another set of performance standards than what we already are doing.

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
11




Deputy Mayor Everhart responded that she doesn’t see why we couldn’t do that and include it in this
motion. She thinks that the intent is that we are not just repeating what the goals and objectives of GO
Topeka would be. That we would establish our own which she thinks could look at other industry
standards and could look at what we think needs to happen in the arena of economic development as a
Board.

Commissioner Archer asked just so he knows where we are going and for clarification, does Deputy
Mayor Everhart have some examples of goals or measurements or metrics or exactly where she thinks we
are going with this? Any examples at all? He is just trying to figure out where we are going and how we
are going to get there.

Deputy Mayor Everhart replied no.

Councilwoman Hiller stated that as an example, like one of the questions she asked eatlier about going
into the high schools, which she thinks it is wonderful to be there. But if we aren’t tracking how many
high school students are going into manufacturing what our goal is and therefore how much time we need
to take and follow up and make sure that our time spent in the high school is actually generating more
welders or whatever we need, who are staying in the community. If it is and that was our goal then we
were successful. If it’s not, for a great classroom speakers and everyone loves having us there but it is not
making a change in the workforce then we would have those kinds of measures. You can’t always
measure them instantly. You can measure an education program for instance by whether people felt like
they learned something and they had an interest let’s say in a career, but then longer term if you are
creating jobs, if you are wanting to move people into positions, we have got to measure that to know that
we accomplished something.

Councilman Schmidt stated that he very much likes the concept of this idea as the entity entrusted with
protecting and seeing that the public monies that are allocated to economic development are spent wisely
and with intent. He thinks it should be something initiated from this Board. Not necessarily that anything
in this strategic plan from GO Topeka is ineffective or not working but it should come from us. And
where he would have some degree of disagreement is while he does think it should come from us, he is
not so sure that it is a good idea for it to just come from us. He thinks maybe we should entertain the idea
of seeking the independent outside consultation for the things that Mayor Wolgast suggested, growing
trends in economic development, where we should be directing this. And he thinks it is almost unfair to
put that burden on GO Topeka because they are the ones we are contracting with to do that and we are
also asking them to set their own goals. And while he thinks they do a fine job in a lot of areas he thinks
that is almost unfair to have them do that. And he doesn’t think there would be a great deal of objection
to the idea of coming up with a strategic plan that generates from the elected officials who are charged
with overseeing the implementation of this economic development money. But he thinks we also need to
entertain the idea that we might want to create a committee or we could do this as a committee of the
whole but we are probably going to need resources from the outside as well or at least entertain the
possibility that we need alternate resources.

Councilman Brown stated as a nonvoting member he would like to lend his support to this proposal. He
thinks it is an excellent idea. This isn’t a criticism of GO Topeka but when he looks at the performance
measurements there are few that are quantified, a great number of them are not quantified, they are more
action items then a goal per se and he thinks this would be an excellent idea in consultation with GO
Topeka. It would be unfair to set metrics upon them without them being involved in the process.

Commissioner Cook stated that having had an opportunity to think about the motion, his concern is if this
is better served as being an agenda item for our February, 2015 meeting to where we might have the
opportunity to maybe develop this a little bit more, have examples of what metrics we would be looking

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
12




at so that this is maybe a little bit more formulated then it is tonight so we know as a Board what exactly
what it is that we are looking at doing for these strategic goals or objectives.

Deputy Mayor Everhart stated that if someone would want to make a substitute motion that it be handled
at the next meeting, she wouldn’t object to that but she thinks it is something that we need to bring
forward.

Mayor Wolgast stated that he agrees with Commissioner Cook’s statements and thoughts. He always
becomes concerned when we take a major action before making the plan, writing the legislation as we
discuss it and usually the next, second or third day we see better, our hindsight is great. He really
questions whether we want to set it to 90 days, he questions if we want to say we can do this ourselves,
until we really see want we want to do and then we look at it in that aspect and he thinks come with a
proposal that we can review in advance and understand and really be a part of. So whatever the Chair
would think is the best way, he would move to defer action on this until the next meeting or is that
appropriate and the way the Chair would like to handle it?

Commissioner Cook stated we have a motion and a second as it stands currently.

Commissioner Buhler questioned that this is not an agenda item, correct? So to her knowledge nothing
has been added to the agenda for the Board to act on. She would defer to legal counsel for clarification.

Richard Eckert, Shawnee County Counselm responded that is correct how Commissioner Buhler has
summarized it.

Commissioner Cook asked then whether it would be best then to table this until the February meeting.
When there has been a motion and a second can that just be tabled by the movant?

Mr. Eckert stated that the easiest way to do it Would be to withdraw the second and then have a new
motion.

Councilwoman Hiller stated that she didn’t want to withdraw her second quite yet until she asks a
question if she may. And that would be a questlon to Deputy Mayor Everhart, what was her thought
about what we would do with this today? Was her thought that we would defer approval of the whole
plan for 90 days or what would we do with what’s on the table?

Deputy Mayor Everhart as she opened she said she would have to objection to proceeding with the plan
and the budget as presented by GO Topeka. She just simply was making a motion that we also as a Board
develop our own performance measures, etc. So no she was not but if this motion is, she is not exactly
sure based on what counsel has said as to how we are supposed to proceed because if we remove this
motion and we have another motion, is it the motion to just add something to the agenda in February,
because he just said if it is not on the agenda then we can’t vote on it so how to you vote on a motion to
add something to a February agenda. The City’s rules are different than the JEDO rules.

Mr. Eckert stated that the position we have had in the past is that any JEDO member can add anything to
an agenda as long as they do it before the deadline. So you wouldn’t need a motion she could just add it
on her own accord. Next year it will be the City, but his office sends a request out a couple weeks before
the deadline asking if anyone has anything to add to the agenda. If it comes from a JEDO member, it
automatically goes on the agenda.

Councilwoman Hiller questioned that we do. She does not believe she received such an email. She is
trying to think through how, she likes the idea that Deputy Mayor Everhart feels that she could lead a
group to do this and if we do want to do it, to do it within the next 90 days she would hate to wait and not

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
13




start on that process until February. And if she is willing to do that and bring it forward, that is only 60
days away but if it is possible, if we were going to pass this tonight and then come with at least a
proposed set of performance guidelines to the pre-scheduled meeting in February, with or without a
motion to do that, would that work and Deputy Mayor Everhart would that be too soon?

Deputy Mayor Everhart stated she is not sure she followed that entirely. Her motion wasn’t to adopt any
performance measures tonight; her motion was that we would establish them. She didn’t think that would
be too difficult in the next 90 days. But if people are uncomfortable and don’t even want to work on that
for 90 days, that’s fine. Then we will add it to the agenda in February. She is not really sure how to
answer Councilwoman Hiller’s question.

Commissioner Cook asked if Councilwoman Hiller was willing to withdraw or does the motion stand as
seconded?

Councilwoman Hiller asked if the Motion could be reread.

Commissioner Cook stated that what he has the motion is that within the next 90 days the JEDO Board
would adopt its own performance measures for the GO Topeka strategic plan. Deputy Mayor Everhart is
that accurate? ~

Deputy Mayor Everhart responded that it is primarily accurate she is not sure that she said necessarily for
the GO Topeka strategic plan but the performance of GO Topeka in how we determine the measurements.
But she thinks he was getting the gist of it that was the motion.

Councilwoman Hiller stated as the person who seconded that motion, she would like to leave it on the
floor and go ahead and move it if it is alright with our rules to leave that as an active motion at this
meeting, she would like to move it. '

Commissioner Cook stated that the motion then stands as read. Are there any other comments?

Commissioner Buhler stated again this is not an action item on the agenda. She doesn’t know how we
can be voting on something that has not been noticed, not been on the agenda. And again, she wants to
make sure we are doing this correctly but she has a concern because if we just start adding agenda items
and then voting on them, she has concerns with that.

Commissioner Cook questioned if it was a new item as part of the strategic plan and our part of the
strategic plan?

Mr. Eckert stated there are a couple questions on the floor so let him answer this way, per the JEDO
Operational Rules, items may be added to the agenda by any voting member subject to the approval of at
least 4 voting members and if there is any problem with the interpretation of that, the Chair gets to
interpret how that particular rule applies. So with regards to the prior question, that would be the answer.
Even though it wasn’t noticed, you still have the ability to add an item so you would actually have to
make a motion to add it and then vote on it.

Commissioner Cook stated so then the proper procedure, if we wanted to go in that route, would be to add
this as an item to tonight’s agenda.

Mr. Eckert responded yes.

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
14




Commissioner Cook stated then we would first need to vote to see whether or not 4 members of the Board
wish to add this to tonight’s agenda.

Mr. Eckert responded correct.

Commissioner Cook stated given that, he would call a vote to see if there are 4 members that would wish
to add this to tonight’s agenda.

Following roll call vote, motion to add item to tonight’s agendu failed 3-4 with Deputy Mayor Everhart,
Councilwoman Hiller and Councilman Schmidt voting in favor and Commissioner Buhler,
Commissioner Cook, Commissioner Archer and Mayor Wolgast dissenting.

Commissioner Cook stated that there were not 4 votes in favor so this would not then be added to
tonight’s agenda for discussion but that would not prevent us from having it as an agenda item for the
meeting in February, which would then be chaired by Mayor - Wolgast.

Mr. Eckert responded that is correct.

Commissioner Cook asked going back to the budget is there further discussion or recommendations to the
budget or explanation of the budget.

Mr. Smathers stated there are a few additional items from the operational budget that he just wanted to
bring up beyond the new business. Under Workforce Development you will see in there we have both the
veterans program, we are looking at the welding training program and the reintegration programs that we
talked about. That is why they see a higher number then we had previously then last year’s budget. That
is why this budget is higher as far as what we are proposing; we are just putting more money towards
training programs. ‘

In the New Business Attraction, we are going to finish the target marketing and updating our
market study and updating our marketing materials. We have tied the bioscience program just
back into the regional marketing efforts.. You will see we’ve added a labor study in there that we
talked about previously and something that we didn’t really talk about but we want to hold a site
consultant event here, It is called a familiarization tour and what we do is we bring site
consultants into our maiket, kind of show them around and let them see what’s available in our
market. So it is something that is done and is very successful as far as letting people know.

Mayor Wolgast asked on the Economic Development Sales which is C.2 on page 7 (page 61 of the
agenda packet), he would note that is a $42,000 increase.

Mr. Smathers responded it isa drop of $42,000.
Mayor Wolgast replied could he talk about that. He thinks Mr. Smathers explained it.

Mr. Smathers stated they dropped the Economic Development Sales portion a little bit because first of all
we are going more with electronic meetings and we are doing a lot more of electronic with Go-To-
Meeting and some of the other things we are doing so we just figured out efficiencies. Once again, we are
also focusing our efforts on certain events rather than trying to hit, where we may not be necessarily
hitting as many events, but our focus is to hit the events where we get to spend the quality time with the
site consultants and/or businesses, where we get to spend the 20-30 minutes with them rather than just
going to the events where you might be 5 minutes here or there with them. We think the quality time is
better spent on doing that so it is just a cost cut that we’ve put into place.

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
15




Mayor Wolgast responded and with that this is a new business attraction section and the total is down
about $70,000 from last year.

Mr. Smathers replied yes he believes that is correct.
Mayor Wolgast asked if philosophically is this a change of direction or emphasis?

Mr. Smathers responded not so much. The other thing that we’ve done though out of those numbers is we
have also pulled out the Governor’s Military Council amount which was $25,000 that we paid for out of
our regional budget last year. And we pulled it out into the actual government section of the budget but it
is in the government section portion of the budget now and that’s where $25,000 came out because we
thought it was a little more open and straightforward.

From the EMBD (the Minority and Women-Owned Business Development) the budgets are the
same. We have moved and changed some programs, we have a little bit more into marketing,
Our business training is still there and those are just some ideas on the business fraining
programs. We run a survey in January and try to find out also what the people and the locals need
and so we have that as another way and we will do some programs there plus we will be doing
some of these other programs that you see. You will see we have a new initiatives amount that is
there and we have talked about that. That is where we are talking about the small business weeks
and maybe the commercial kitchen and some other ideas there. We put out a separate column for
the Professional Business Womens’ Roundtable which was a highly successful event that we put
on brand new this year. Glenda and Mary Ann did a super job with that, had over 200
participants and went very well so we budgeted there. And you will see based on what we have
talked about at our last meeting we have given our allocation for 712 Innovations for next year as
well. So that is the $75,000 that is in there on that budget.

Under Entrepreneurial Development, last year there was an effort by this Board and you said you
would like more money going towards small business development and new ideas, so that is
where we used it this past year with 712 Innovations and the Pitch Contest. This year w are
proposing to expand the Pitch Contest and also look at possibly the creation of forgivable loan
funds. And we are always looking for opportunities in how we can help small businesses and that
is our fund to do that.

Under Research you will see that we added a little money for additional data acquisition we are
not only acquiring the demographics but now we are getting data that we are actually going to be
able to put on our new website so people will just be able to go to our website and pull down or
download information in'a much easier fashion. And we were also acquiring specific business
data from a large business point of view so we can call on them direct a little more, it will give us
a better idea of who is looking at expanding through data that they have.

Mayor Wolgast state that he knows they have 712 Innovations in the Minority and Women-Owned
Business Development rather than Entrepreneurial Development. He is sure there is logic there. He
knows it started there.

Mr. Smathers responded yes is started there and we had funded a large portion of it out of that budget
previously and so we have just left the funding out of that particular budget. If as an organization they
say they don’t want it coming out of that and they want to take it out of the Entrepreneurial Development
budget that is fine and we will try to reverse the other. We can work it either way from their point of
view. He knows we have an allocation to the small business development section of $500,000 but we are

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
16




not from anything that we have seen limited to that amount and so from our point of view as new
programs come up that we can help small and middle-sized businesses be effective and expand in our
market, we make those funds allocated. So that is why with this Entrepreneurial Development section
that is really what we are doing, we are simply setting aside money to help us do that.

He also wanted to mention under the Government Relations Consultant you will see that is where
we have put the Governor’s Military Council and what that is, that is an organization that the
Governor has set up that helps us maintain our military bases throughout the state and so we
contribute and Wichita contributes and others contribute around the state to try to help. As you
know when you get into the discussions you want to make sure that you have got your arguments
already put together and already having been out there and talking to the various entities to try to
keep those businesses in our state and obviously in Topeka with the National Guard.

He apologizes if he ran through those rather quickly on the operational budgets. Brad Owen,
CPA, Mize Houser & Company, P.A. can talk to them about the rest of it. Do any of them have
any questions about the operational budget portion side?

Commissioner Archer asked if they are including Heartland Visioning in the opérational budget?
Mr. Smathers responded no. That is going to be the next discussion.

Brad Owen, CPA, Mize Houser & Company, P.A. stated he would be addressing the schedule on page 68
of the agenda packet. This is kind of a summary, broad brush overview of the budget. We prepare this
every year so they can see the prior year budget, an estimate of where we think we are going to come out
for the year and the proposed budget for 2015. So itis klnd of a big plctme look. He will point out some
highlights and then stand for any questions.

The receipts are pretty obvious, it is the $5 million agreement and we have some other income
that comes in. There is some crop income that comes in on idle land so that is what that is. One
the expenditures side, the salaries you see here are for 5 %2 FTE’s (full-time equivalent). We have
another 1 % FTE’s which we categorize in Minority and Women-Owned Business. We do that so
you can see that we are hitting the 10% mark as required by the contract. The salaries for the 5 %2
FTE’s we are budgeting at 1.8% increase over last year’s budget. You will see that we are
estimating that we won’t use all of last year’s budget. We had a few positions that were not filled
or fully occupied during the year. Payroll taxes and benefits, you see a significant decline there
from the budget. Management has been working to manage those health care costs so that is
down quite a bit. And Mr. Smathers has gone over the departmental activities, the total of
$1,362,450. 'We have other operating expenses that include rent, legal, accounting, auditing and
things of that nature; that is down just a bit from the prior year budget but pretty close. So if you
go about halfway down the page you see a line that says “Total Receipts over Operating
Expenditures” which is $2,932,973 for the proposed budget for 2015. We think we will be at
about $3 million when we are done with this year and then the budget was $2,936,725 for last
year. So from an operational perspective we are very close to where we were a year ago.

You can see that we have added back into the proposed budget Heartland Visioning of $60,000.
Then below that we list out Incentives and Site Expenditures. The first line is anticipated
expenditures on current commitments. When you get the financial statements there is always a
schedule of commitments in the back and if you look at the 2015 column in the last quarter, that
will be the $1,034,600. So those are the current obligations we have to pay in 2015. You can see
the expected is down a bit from the approved 2014 budget. The largest part of that is because one
of the incentives was deferred from 2014 into 2015. There are always a few incentives that aren’t

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
17




fully earned so that is part of the decline but for the most part it was just a deferral of one of the
incentives. We always have some indirect site/incentive expenditures. There are expenses
related to monitoring compliance with those incentive agreements. There are legal fees involved
in setting up new agreements and things of that nature and also property taxes on the land so all
those things get put into that line.

The new incentives of $1.5 million, you can see that last year we estimated $1.45 million that was
not used so management has basically set aside $1.5 million for those new incentives that would
develop. And that number is loosely based on pending deals that are being discussed. 49" Street
Improvements, management feels that street will eventually have to be improved so this $350,000
represents expected development costs and that is really more planning and design work. You
can see Kanza Fire Infrastructure, Mr, Smathers said that is substantially complete so there is no
budget for that specific line, although we are moving the signage and entryway number from last
year’s budget into this year since that was not done. Same for the next line site
options/acquisitions Kansas Fire Phase II that was not done in 2014, we expect to make an option
payment on that land for another year and so we have simply moved forward the estimated
acquisition price of that.

So when you get done with all those addmons and subtractions, if we do all of those things we
will use $2,731,627 more than the $5 million we bring in and that will come from existing cash.

Commissioner Archer indicated he has a question. Last year the Board had a long discussion of taxpayer
money going to Heartland Visioning. And we decided that wasn’t a good expenditure of taxpayer money
and after 5 years of subsidies, $300,000 of taxpayer money going to Heartland Visioning and yet here it is
back $60,000 and he would like to ask why.

Mr. Kinsinger responded that it was their anticipation from comments we have heard from individual
JEDO members that you at least wanted to discuss this as part of their budget consideration so it is up to
their option whether or not to consider that. We have heard comments from several of them that you
wanted to at least discuss that option this year.

Commissioner Archer questioned what would happen if we took that money out? Would the private
sector make up the $60,0007 Is it that important to the private sector?

Mr. Kinsinger replied that is would not be appropriate for him to comment for John Hunter, Executive
Director, Heartland Visioning.

Commissioner Cook would note that Mr. Hunter is scheduled to speak before them tonight.

Mayor Wolgast questioned and maybe this would be perhaps for Mr. Kinsinger or Mr. Smathers, would
they list positions. They have listed there the salaries of 5 % positions, would they list the titles of those
positions. He thinks it is good to know who is included in this budget. And that is a bit unfair he
understands not having that in advance.

Mr. Smathers stated he does apologize that he doesn’t know all the titles. We have the Director of New
Business Development which is Molly Howey, we have our Research Analysis, we have our Executive
Assistant, we have the half-time person who is really pretty much full-time allocated to the small business
but we cover half of it in our general budget, and we have our Existing Business person, we have a couple
of other half-time people, one person does social media and marketing materials.

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
18




Mayor Wolgast responded again he knows it is unfair question but he thinks it is just helpful for us to see
what we have and what we fund.

Councilwoman Hiller questioned on the new land acquisition and the $2.5 million that he talked about,
that is specifically for an already identified parcel at Kanza?

Mr. Kinsinger responded yes this is part of the Phase 2 extension of Kanza Fire which is on the west side
of Highway 75. This Board had previously authorized that as part of the overall concept. They approved
previously, we have acquired 40 acres that is in the middle of that. There is actually 560 acres that are left
in Phase 2, as we have continued to do more engineering work and analysis of that site we think there are
actually probably about 270-300 acres that is really good viable, usable land. And so this cost represents
a portion of that site, not all of the 560 acres. We don’t really want to acquire it until there is a need. We
have 250 acres directly adjacent to Mars in Phase 1 but we continue to have companies who are looking
at that site and we have had projects that have looked at needing more than the 250 acres. We have
actually pitched that site on another project that we are currently under consideration for. Being able to
assemble those size of sites is not easy, especially where you have got good highway or inftastructure and
having that available is quite an asset that makes us more competitive. But we are not proposing to buy
it, if you will notice under the footnote, it does say it is contingent on further approval of both the GO
Topeka Board and the JEDO Board. So we are just trying to prepare to budget in case but we are not here
tonight to ask for your permission to proceed. '

Councilwoman Hiller asked if we were to consider another dlffelent parcel for some other business that
came in, that would be other funds then?

Mr. Kinsinger replied that we would have to come back to this body for approval and they could take it
from those funds if they want or out of the incentive funds if they want.

Commissioner Cook stated at this time we will move towards public comment regarding the proposed
strategic plan and budget. He would note that there is a time limit of 4 minutes unless the Board by
majority vote extends the limitation. Debates, questions, answer, dialogue or discussion with Board
members will not count towards the 4 minute time limitations. He does have a number of people signed
up to speak so he will call the person and then the person after them so we can keep this orderly.

Public Comment:

Lazone Grays stated one of the things that Mayor Wolgast did mention as far as the funding for 712
Innovations, he didn’t come to speak to that but he did just want to mention that it was said that the
monies were coming out of the Women and Minority funds or should it be in the Entrepreneurial. He does
believe that it should be-in the Entrepreneurial budget. He thinks that just because money is there, it is
not supposed to go for anything, those monies should be targeted to help those designated populations
that the monies were geared for.” And no disrespect, he is not exactly sure of the demographic of those
who will benefit the most really fit into that type of market of what that Women and Minority and
Disadvantaged business realm should be. So he would think if there was an ability of getting that same
amount of funds, not to derail that but to get the funds from another portion. He thinks that would be
much better than the way that it was done.

Reading the agenda he really did not know where the on-ramp was to come to speak to what he is
sharing with them here. He doesn’t know, not being at the table and not being a part of the
contractor that puts together its plan to present to them and how would someone else come in to
present what they would like to consider. He understands Deputy Mayor Everhart’s look at the
measurements goals and examples, but if you are only getting one side then it makes it hard for

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
19




people who are not part of their economic development consultancy to share their information. If
there is an ability of requesting funds be put into the budget for 2015, he has come here on a
consistent basis just when it deal with youth employment. If the definition for economic
development isn’t just about business and business start up but it is about workforce training,.
And there is nothing that says it is just about adult workforce training and development but we
have young people too. And if looking at the higher unemployment of certain young people in
this neighborhood, in this community here, he doesn’t know where to continue to go and request
funds for youth employment. CDBG (Community Development Block Grant) funds —no. He
has come here —no. And so what he has tried to do is lay out what the economic impact of young
people in this City what they provide already. And these are some very conservative numbers.
And so the reason that whether it is $60,000 to Heartland Visioning or $30,000 dedicated to youth
employment at Jeast so that the program could be initiated by the summer of 2015, he would like
to request that the JEDO find fit to making some monies appropriated there.

He has shared with them copies of the changes of what used to be the Workforce Investment Act
which is now the Workforce Innovations and Opportunities Act so that they could realize that it’s
not just him saying this, but this is sort of a federal or national prioritization of investing in young
people especially those that have conditions that must individuals are going to be minority, low
income individuals in targeted neighborhoods are going to face. He would like to request
additional time to speak for another four minutes: ~ :

Commissioner Buhler moved to give Mr. Grays an additional four minutes to speak. Deputy Mayor
Everhart seconded. Following roll call vote, motion carried unanimously.

Mr. Grays continued stating there were too many moving parts to talk about there so he would just like to
focus his effort on this youth employment portion of it. He thinks that young people are paying into the
system and after twelve years, there has never really been anything to do to reinvest back into those for
the economic impact that they are putting in. The reason that the program was cut for its budget from the
City was because of budgetary reasons. And that was $45,000 yearly that was being spent. Now even on
the Jowest number, young people probably spend or directly influence the spending of $120,000 a year in
this City. He doesn’t think that this amount is asking too much. Young people normally are not going to
get in their car and go and spend their paycheck in Lawrence or Kansas City where adults may do that.
There is more than enough information that he has shared over the years here on the values and benefits
of youth employment, reducing dropouts, increasing achievement, increasing graduation rates. And so he
would like the City, the County to take a stand. If the JEDO is setting priorities and they say that
priorities are going to be that we are going to decrease youth unemployment, we are going to decrease the
unemployment of black men and other minorities that he has been saying, than he thinks that whoever the
contractor is should then structure whatever their plan is around what they have set as a priority, which is
what the public wants them to do, is set the priorities. He believes that it is a good investment in young
people in this City. '

It is not like the program, and he is sorry Mayor Wolgast, when he met with him but he has not
been able to find any of the articles that were written on the summer youth employment program,
he has not been able to get any feedback from any of the former staff, City or County, that knew
more about the program. But he does know that the program wasn’t taken away because it was a
failed program, it was a budgetary situation from the City’s perspective. He believes that a
program should be expanded. When you not just look at the JEDO funds, but these are funds that
other federal and state funds that are already in play, he believes that there is a better leveraging
opportunity of funds that if you have $30,000 from here that they commit and then the priorities
are already set for the new Workforce Investment and Opportunities funds, that leveraging those
funds, possibly CDBG, possibly funds from DCF (Department of Children and Families) so that

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
20




it wouldn’t be a $30,000 program but it would be more, but it would have the support and
investment from the City and the County through the JEDO just so that there is an expectation
and anticipation that this summer that there will be a Summer Youth Employment program in the
City of Topeka/Shawnee County. Even if that means young people are working in places outside
the City but in other parts of the County. So that is really his premise of coming in and speaking
here. He does not think that it should be like the program that was run. He thinks that there
should be a better program that is put together so that young people who are participating are
actually getting some gainful skills that they can move into the workforce. And this age range the
he is speaking of, the summer program was for 14-15 year olds. Those who are right below the
age of getting a regular job. So again, whether they are spending the money or they are
influencing the spending, no one can discount the economic.impact that young people pay in the
City and he believes, without further ado, that they should reinvest in the monies that they spend
in this City.

Mayor Wolgast asked regarding the materials provided, and by the way as Mr. Grays mentioned, we have
discussed this several times and different possibilities, with the supporting documents he has here this is
from Workforce One, so are they promoting this, overseeing it, supporting it, putting it together?

Mr. Grays responded no, Workforce One is really probably the place that disseminates the information
about what the policies are. It is the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration
that is the one that set the regulations and directives. So that is the body that prioritizes whatever
programs that are going to be funded and active out of workforce centers across the United States.
Therefore that is why he has added the emphasis on work-based learning which that emphasis from the
Department of Labor is summer jobs, apprenticeships.. And then how they actually have created nerw
youth elements which includes financial literacy and for the first time ever that funds for and priority for
entrepreneurial skills training for youth ages 14-21 has been added. So these are moving parts with new
opportunities that he thinks that we need to look. at if this is a national direction, he thinks that local
government should actually be moving in line with it. - So Workforce One is just the portal to get the
information and the education, they have a lot of the webinars and bring the people from the federal
departments, state departments to talk about and answer questions about what are the new changes in this
legislation and to identify some of the best practices that have been going on.

Councilwoman Hiller stated she thinks they got something like this at the Council today, an adult
program that was part of Workforce One through the state but she thought that particular program was
funded, that it is part of the Department of Labor and that it is part of the workforce programming that
they do now on their own. So would this be as well.

Mr. Grays responded again Workforce One is not the U.S. Department of Labor it is just the portal where
you can get a lot of the research and information and things of that nature there. If the funds came for,
and he received that just as well, and that is more of a state driven initiative other than federal and that is
for adults. His being here tonight is for this youth concern. He does have to apologize that the part of the
reintegration that Mr. Smathers was talking about, if the ball has been dropped it was because of him, he
has personal family issues that he has got to deal with and he is trying to find other men to step up to the
plate. He is glad there are some people in the back here who have pledged to work with him on this. But
Workforce One is not the federal government, it is just the portal. The directives come from the
Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, that is where the guidance comes from.
Now across the nation we have moved from the Workforce Investment Act, which had its priorities, to the
Workforce Innovations and Opportunities Act which has sort of the same but it added and it also says that
more emphasis on spending these public funds should go to those programs that at least the certifications
for in demand industries and to focus on those individuals who have barriers to employment such as gaps
in employment, ex-felons and things of that nature from the adult side. So he shared with them, and it

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
21




shows what are the additional conditions, what young people are we talking about. We are talking about
those with basic skills deficient, ex-offenders, homeless, foster care, those aging out of foster care,
pregnant and parenting, disabled and so on. Things that are not being done, it is not the schools that do
these things, it’s not DCF that does these things. The bigger picture is that there are other available funds
through the Workforce Center, through the state agencies that he thinks could be paired with this here,
just to do this one thing — youth employment. And not just summer youth employment, he believes that
something should be developed year-round for youth employment, especially targeting those young
people who are age 14-15.

Councilwoman Hiller thanked Mr. Grays and stated just a comment to the JEDO Board, she really
appreciates that Mr. Grays brings these issue forth but she really thinks as they move forward in this
strategic planning that we have discussed today, we need to be looking and just refreshing on whether
what our intent was with economic development funds that we have was to create jobs or to do workforce
development or where that line is particularly if somebody else is involved. And she doesn’t know the
answer, she just thinks he raises some really good points.

Mr. Grays responded that he only goes off the definition that was set on economic development and
workforce training development is a part of that definition. So he doesn’t think he is not adding anything
to the table that wasn’t already there. He is just trying to make sure that the focus isn’t just always on
business and startup because the things that are hurting some segments of the population isn’t about
business, it’s about high, chronic, statistically significant unemployment and lack of skills is one of the
things that really deters people from getting'a job. It is not about job creation, it is about preparing people
for the jobs that already exist here.

Joseph Ledbetter, Attorney stated he would like to comment on some of the earlier things that were talked
about before he goes into his other concerns. ‘First off it is always a fair question to ask any manager of
any unit that is getting public funds how many employees they have. It is a very fair question and they
should know, especially if they have been here awhile. He will say that Mr. Smathers and him have met
at his office and we have talked about veterans and Mr, Grays is a veteran and he thinks Mr. Grays would
be a great resource to help mentor veterans and help veterans. It would be nice if someone would hire
him to do some of that. He is a veteran, there are 16,000 veterans in this community, they are certainly not
all retired, many of them are looking for jobs and many of them continue to change careers. That is
something that happens a lot nowadays You can‘go to law school after you are thirty, you can do
different things.

So he would tell them that we are in a changing economy and after thirteen years he thinks it
would be high time that we had some performance standards from this body. He definitely
supports what he heard earlier tonight and seconded, he thinks they should have passed it but
anyway. What concerned him was that some of the members here didn’t know what the rule was
about adding to the agenda. Did they receive the email saying one or two weeks ago you could
add something to the agenda? He doesn’t know, he is not privy to their emails but it seems like a
due process question when people don’t know the basic rules and he thinks they should be
enlightened so you might go through all those rules some night so that the new voting members
know what those are.

Now looking at this budget, first off he is opposed to the Heartland Visioning funding. He did
have them out to a Highcrest (NIA) meeting. They had four priorities that they had set by a very
small group of people. He didn’t see any Fastsiders in that group. He certainly is not an
Eastsider anymore, he has been but he certainly represents a lot of people on the East side that
have a lot of needs and he brought up some of those needs and they said that is not part of their

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
22




priority list. He asked them who made up the priority list so they showed him a Power Point with
six individuals on it and he told them that was ridiculous.

Now let him go back to a point he just made about performance standards. If this body after
thirteen years of experience and he knows that not all of you have been here that long, but some
of you have been here eight years; if you haven’t gained enough experience to do that job that’s
not good. But you do have experts that are readily available to you and they are not going to cost
you anything. They are called citizens. You have 172,000 citizens in this County that can readily
give you some good ideas. And some ideas for performance standards which we should have
already had and setting goals. Goals on employment numbers, on salaries that we are looking for
to try to get into this community, not just minimum wage jobs which is a big complaint that he
hears. We need performance standards, that was the word that was first used, and we need goals
set by this body. And they should have been done it a long time ago. He is glad it is finally being
discussed. Thank you Deputy Mayor Everhart. He is going to ask for more time to speak because
so far he has just commented on what they were talking about earlier.

Commissioner Cook asked if there was a request for an extension and how much time would Mr.
Ledbetter like to ask for. Is it a four minute extension?

Mr. Ledbetter asked how much time did Mr. Smathers get; he would take half of that. He is kidding; he
is not going to talk that long.

Deputy Mayor Everhart moved to give Mr. Ledbetter an addzttonal four minutes to speak. Councilman
Schmidt seconded.  Following roll call vote, motion carried 4-3 with Commussioner Cook,
Commissioner Buhler and Commissioner Archer dissenting.

Mr. Ledbetter thanked the four members of the City. Next he would like to talk about the budget on this
one page document that has been laid out. His first problem with it is, it’s one page. His second problem
with it is it has only been out in the public by email for about five days. When we are dealing with $§5
million of public money, this should be noticed up at least 30-45 days out. We should have a copy of it

online, we should be able to access it, if we have to call a Clerk’s office that’s fine but we should be able
to get it. And then we can come here prepa1ed to discuss it. That is done with just about every other
public budget he has seen and he thinks that it is wrong that these things are just brought up at the last
minute.

On the land acquisition, $2.5 million is half of their budget. We do not need more land. We have
got about 600 acres of land that is vacant. Some of that is farmland, you see that in the income of
$10,000. We don’t need more land. And Bimbo Bakeries only used 20 acres. So every year we
hear this hoopla that we are going to need more land and we don’t need it, we haven’t needed it
since the Mars acquisition which was signed in 2011. We have a lot of vacant land. He is
concerned about some of the things that were said by Mr. Kinsinger tonight. He said this next
phase would be 560 acres, 370 of it is usable. Exactly. He has been saying that a lot of it is
wetlands. He got a copy of the site plan from 2009 and he agrees it should not be bought on that
part.

He wants to know what part of this budget is going to the Chamber of Commerce. He thinks it is
high time we got these numbers and that we had accountability and transparency. We know from
an article earlier this year, September 27", that GO Topeka admitted that they give about
$500,000 a year to the Chamber of Commerce. That is in direct conflict with their 990’s that are
signed by their President and CEO, which is more like $900,000 a year. You can go back and
check those out; we have made those part of the record from time to time. He would like to know

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
23




exactly how much money of this budget that they are being asked to approve is going to the
Chamber of Commerce through GO Topeka. He would like that answer tonight, an exact
number. And he would like to know how many more FTE’s we are paying for with that. That is
a second question.

He is opposed to these improvements listed on 49™ Street because he thinks 49™ should have
already been improved. He has seen that in the budget year after year, they have got 75 acres on
49™ that they should have developed before they bought any further, so why haven’t they
developed this street? But just to spend it on design with no anticipation of ever finishing the
work, he doesn’t believe in that, he thinks that is a waste of money until they decide to finish the
street in its entirety. And by the way there is a new bridge there, so that takes up a lot of the costs
they were saying they would have to make. That bridge is being built, he thinks it is already
constructed but you can go out there and look at it, it is just off Topeka Boulevard. He has got a
lot more to say but he does want that transparency and accountability and rather than belabor you
with another request, since he only got four the last time, it looks like the County members don’t
want him to talk, he will just go ahead and sit down for now until the next item.

Carol Marple stated she is a citizen of the County and she would like to thank Mr. Gray, he said it a lot
better than she could. She has a proposal, suggestion, whatever and she didn’t know how to do it so she
is just here and she is going to talk about it. There are other things with the budget that she could talk
about but she came here specifically to talk about the zoo. She dislikes waste. She did a KORA (Kansas
Open Records Act) and asked what the zoo spends every year on feed. Now she thinks everybody will
agree with her that a lot of the voters, voted to extend the sales tax because of the zoo and we want to
support the zoo within the County. She just doesn’t understand, we have farm ground, we have hay
ground, she knows about feeding livestock and zoo animals are basically livestock but in a different form.
She did not know until she sat here that they made $10,000.off of their farm land revenue, she thinks
that’s not very good. Her proposal is or her suggestion, whatever you want to call it, is since the County
owns farm ground and hay ground, let’s turn the grain produced and the hay taken off of it, which she is
sorry to say she doesn’t think there is any because they have not been very good stewards of the land. It
is not going to be an over night thing that we can shift this into production so that the zoo can use it but
why spend money for something that we own and that’s what we are doing. The zoo has to spend money
to go out and buy feed. And just to give you an example, a bushel of corn today costs $3.44. If you
bought the very same bushel of corn, which the zoo is on the buying end, it is going to cost you $3.75.
Now that’s $.31 cents a bushel difference. You take that for a year feeding these animals, you know there
is gomg to have to be some working together. You are going to have to work with the farmer, you are
going to have to work with Mr. Wiley (Zoo Director). But why are we buying something that we have?
And she is not saying that if we can provide this to the zoo, that the zoo should lose their funding for their
feed. She thinks that there are always drought years but if it frees up money that they can make
improvements or do different things at the zoo, why not? Especially if we are making $10,000. Let’s

manage it correctly and let’s get some good out of it for our citizens who all enjoy the zoo.

Commissioner Buhler asked if she had had any discussions with the zoo about these ideas?

Ms. Marple responded yes. She talked with Mr. Wiley one day and she asked him if it had ever been
suggested and he said no, I don’t think anybody ever thought about it. And then quite frankly she had an
appointment with Mr. Wiley, it has been over a year ago, to visit about this and he stood her up and then
he was supposed to call her but he never did. So no, she does not know Mr. Wiley’s feelings on this but
he is a very good zoo director and she would think that if he was provided with some extra money he
would be all in favor of it. She is not asking to short the animals or anything like that and on a personal
note she can say that the hay we produce in this state is very good. Ben and her sold two barnfuls of hay
last year. We had a broker, a middle man, but it all went to a zoo up north. And that zoo bought two

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
24




complete barnfuls of hay. So it’s not that we are lacking, we have the resources right here to make this
work.

John Hunter, Executive Director, Heartland Visioning stated as part of the GO Topeka budget, it is his
pleasure to provide for them a brief overall statement regarding our activities during 2014. During 2014,
Heartland Visioning has been rebuilding its organizational structure, we have been transitioning our
leadership and we have accelerated our grassroots efforts through community engagement process.
Currently there are 65 visionary volunteers, most of them are organizational leaders in our community
who are addressing the various issues associated with the five priorities that were established all based on
community responses. One of our priorities, the dynamic core, has a network team that is chaired by
Mayor Wolgast. This team functions as an oversight group, tracking the projects that are under
development between 10" Street on the South and Gordon Street on the North. We consider these areas
as a major economic development district with obtainable goals and measureable results. And like the
NOTO project (North Topeka Arts District) which is a direct result of the Heartland Visioning process.
Through the efforts of our community volunteers who are involved in that, today we now know that we
have some 31 new businesses that have been added to a very repressed historic district. And that district
today, during the course of any month, there are some 2,000 people who will come there visiting and
shopping on a monthly basis and we do know that sales tax revenue for that area has risen substantially.

Heartland Visioning is also making an effort through our education of our volunteers and the
general population on the multitude of community initiatives that are going on. Things like
Heartland Healthy Neighborhoods, the Pine Ridge Project, the Netreach Program in the Highcrest
neighborhood. We work in collaboration with throughout the year with groups like Shawnee
County Parks & recreation, the Great Overland Station, the Topeka Metropolitan Transit
Authority, Downtown Topeka, Inc., Visit Topeka and a host of other important organizations
throughout our community. Heartland Visioning has also provided financial support through our
grants process for projects like the Topeka Community Conversation on Poverty, the Born
Learning Trail at Pine Ridge, the most recent Topeka Tedx Project which was really exciting and
the Quincy School and NOTO Partnership which focuses on a creative, safe walkway for our
school children. We are driven by issues dealing with improvement to our overall quality of life
and economic development. Unique in our process, we pride ourselves on being a voice of the
community concerns and we strive to build a trusting community that will brand Topeka and
Shawnee County as a fun and exciting place to live.

Throughout the year we: have solicited financial support from individuals, businesses and
corporations. Our efforts will provide approximately $130,000 in private support for 2015. We
believe this is a clear indication that our business community recognizes the benefits of our
organization to bring forth positive and important change Our mission has not changed since
2008. We still believe that we can create a growing and dynamic community with a superior
quality of life and we are excited that five years ago the ideas that came out of the meetings with
some 5,000 citizens, that some of those ideas, that were dreams at that time such as the riverfront
development, that now within the next five years are in reach and we can look forward to a time
when we will possibly be boating on the river between the two bridges so we are excited about
that. Visioning is a complex process, it takes time, our vision for 2015 is clear and we hope that
through the budget process tonight the financial support required for us to continue our efforts
will be approved so that we can continue moving forward with both the City and the County.

Commissioner Archer stated that Heartland Visioning didn’t have the tax subsidy for 2014. But it sounds
like they are making progress and doing well. What is the community going to be missing if Heartland
Visioning doesn’t get $60,000 from GO Topeka?

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
25




Mr. Hunter responded that when he came in at the first part of April, one of the first things that he had to
do was go line by line through the budget and make some serious cuts because they were minus that
funding as well as adjustments that were made as a result of his salary as a consultant instead of a full-
time Executive Director position salary. And he can tell them, this has been a very lean and conservative
year. There are things that they feel they really need to do and he would like to mention two of them. He
has put into the budget, which has been approved by Heartland Visioning’s Management Committee; that
does include this amount of money, two initiatives that they have been working on. One is with KTWU.
Eugene Wilson over the last couple of months has been preparing for what we call an awareness
campaign. That campaign is going to be designed to introduce people in the community, not only to
Heartland Visioning, but to the various organizations that are doing some profound things in our
community, but simply do not have within their budget the ability to advertise all the good that they do.
For instance, the Pine Ridge Project, the Netreach Project at Hillcrest. So our plans are to initiate that
type of an awareness community campaign that will be aired on KTWU and he hopes the other stations as
well.

The second thing that he has done in making budget adjustments, again based on if they receive
this funding, is to move Emma Starkey, our Communications Assistant to the position of Director
of Communications and Community Engagement. Emma is doing a wonderful job getting out to
all of the major organizations such as Heartland Healthy Neighborhoods, Safe Streets and other
types of community organizations and he wants to focus her time specifically on community
engagement projects that we are planning for 2015. And then to offset that, we are hoping to hire
a 20 hour per week, part-time assistant to take over some of the secretarial and administrative
types of duties for Emma. Again if we cannot move forward with those two components, we will
be an organization that would be functioning with basically one hand tied behind our back. There
is only so long that you can contmue on ina Very conservative budget posture and still be
effective. ~ -

Gina Milsap, CEO & Executive Director, Topeka & Shawnee County Public Library. It has been her
privilege to serve as the Chair of Heartland Visioning for the past three years. This is kind of her final
hurrah as a matter of fact so she is hoping for a positive outcome. There is a lot of pressure here folks.
She has been involved with Heartland Visioning as a volunteer and a member of the Steering Committee
since its inception. She has lived here for nine years, she moved here from Ames, lowa and is originally
from Columbia, Missouri; she doesn’t want to hear it. And she will tell them this; this is a different
community from when she moved here. It is a very different community. How is it different? There is
more optimism about the present and the future, there’s a greater willingness to collaborate and partner
and leverage resources. And that is in the private sector, the nonprofit sector and government sector and
among individuals. There are more people who are committed to creating and 1mplement1ng a shared
vision for this community so that is grows and prospers. And a lot of that stems from our increasing
social capital. Communities need a lot of types of capital to succeed. They are talking about that tonight,
they are talking about money for a lot of different things. But that also includes social networks that are
formed because people, organizations and businesses see a compelling interest in working together to get
things done. And that growing social capital has been a priority of Heartland Visioning. It is our bread
and butter and we’ve done it very well and there is no one else in the community that’s doing this
particular aspect.

So you can’t write a check to obtain people’s interest and their trust and engagement. But you
can invest in Heartland Visioning and trust us to facilitate the collaboration of the private sector,
which is already making a significant investment, the nonprofit sector, the government sector and
individuals in this community. Because they are the ones doing the hard work to make this a
great community. But we are facilitating the collaboration that’s making those things happen.
And she makes no apologies for bragging about that because it operates under the radar, you

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
26




don’t necessarily see it but if it is not happening you will notice. So Commissioner Archer asked
a very good question — why are we still seeing this in the budget. She sat at the JEDO Board
meeting last year when Commissioner Archer said he wasn’t going to support Heartland
Visioning anymore and she is asking for their support this year. Because first of all we have
reinvigorated and reinvented Heartland Visioning. We have new leadership, we have a great new
steering community. She will also mention too that the series of community meetings that we
conducted in the last quarter of 2013, included 400 people around this community, and that is a
statistically significant sample of a population base of 179,000. Can you tell she is a librarian?
And so they do have a mandate from the people to focus on the priorities that we set and she
thinks they will agree that those are in alignment with both the City and the County.

Commissioner Cook asked as part of Heartland Visioning, she has mentioned that they have received
funds from the private sector, are seeking funds from the public sector. What about the Library Board?
Has the Library Board helped contribute to the funds?

Ms. Milsap responded that the Library Board has contributed $5,000 every year since the beginning of
Heartland Visioning and her Board continues to support Heartland Visioning.

Commissioner Cook asked if there are other governmental entities that are also contributing outside of the
Library Board? Do they receive funds from other governmental entities?

Ms. Milsap replied no not from other governmental entities. She is trying to think who those would be
other than the City and the County. '

Commissioner Cook questioned if they have ever made a budget request directly to the City or the County
to be a part of their budget?

Ms. Milsap responded she thinks initially that was the strategy and the response was that the preference
from the City and the County was that the request go through JEDO and that sales tax be utilized to fill
the request. That is her understanding,

Commissioner Cook stated he just asks because in the two years that he has been a commissioner, he has
not had a presentation from Heartland Visioning during the budget process of the County. Other groups
and organizations have asked for. funding from the County but he knows that Heartland Visioning has not
so he just didn’t know the background.

Ms. Milsap replied that they were instructed to come to this body so that is what they did.

Lucky DeFries, GO Topeka Past Board Chair/Attorney at Coffman, DeFries & Nothern would like to
thank them for their collaboration with GO Topeka over the years. He thinks he may be the last
remaining member of the GO Topeka Board that was part of the initial group that helped form GO
Topeka and ultimately helped create JEDO. He thinks all of us should be proud and pleased with what
has evolved over the years and what we have been able to accomplish. He thinks through the engagement
and the collaboration that we have had with JEDO especially in recent years, some of the conversations
that we have been able to have, he thinks that is laying the groundwork for a lot of things that we can
continue to do in the future and some things that we can improve upon. And he thinks the conversations
that we’ve had have helped lay the groundwork for that and he for one looks forward to what we can
accomplish in the future. So simply thank you for their help and he would encourage a favorable
consideration of the strategic plan and the budget that is being presented tonight.

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
27




Councilwoman Hiller stated she will throw something out to Mr. DeFries, and he can react if there is a
reaction. She hasn’t had the privilege of serving on the GO Topeka Board as some of her colleagues
have. But she really appreciates what they are doing. Also in terms of the conversation we had at the
beginning of the meeting about JEDO taking the reins and establishing some performance goals and
looking at best practices in the future. Her understanding is that members of the GO Topeka Board have
had that conversation as well and that is partly what encouraged her to be part of raising that issue here.
She hopes she is right because she feels that is a collaborative thing to do.

Mr. DeFries responded that he thinks over the years we have tried to be responsive to JEDO and try and
work in a fashion that we are responding to their questions or whatever it might be that they are looking
at. So certainly he thinks there has been an attempt to set certain guidelines and criteria, upon which we
can be measured and in terms that they are meeting the kinds of goals and objectives that all of us would
all like to see in terms of our economic development efforts.

Councilwoman Hiller replied that she put that forth because that is her understanding as well. We don’t
cross over, oddly, as Boards; the JEDO Board and the GO Topeka Board very often at all. That was one
reason why, it’s been about two years ago now and she was one of the people who pushed for it, for us to
jointly look at best practices and begin to prepare for this time. And we did have two sessions that she
thought were very good and very informative and productive and she hopes that we continue to do that as
we look forward.

Mr. DeFries responded that he thinks each year as part of presentations, he thinks typically GO Topeka
tries to go through and look at what the objectives have been and what the progress has been during the
course of the year all of which should go towards whether or not GO Topeka’s continuing to meet the
needs that all of us are looking for. E

Councilwoman Hiller stated again it is her understanding that they have been having those discussions
recently as well and she appreciates that.

Jeff Wietharn, Legal Counsel for GO Topeka/Attorney at Coffman, DeFries & Nothern stated he would
like to clarify a couple of things real quick. And he is not completely up to speed on it but he would like
them to know — there is a question about why GO Topeka hasn’t developed 49™ Street. 49" Street is in a
benefit district and was platted by the City and once we start developing the land to the north or the south,
we are going to have help pay for the improvement to that road, so we keep it in the budget but we do not
want to spend those monies until we absolutely have to. Also another comment was made regarding the
tax return and a recent newspaper article. If he understands the issue or the confusion, the newspaper
article focused on the public dollars that were transferred to the Chamber, in the context of the service
agreement, so there might be a little difference but generally that was the difference. There are private
dollars that also go towards that service agreement so he just wanted to try to clarify that a little bit. He is
not the accountant but he thinks that is probably what that confusion is by one of the commentators. He
would like to take one more minute and go on a tangent, take his lawyer’s hat off and say, we have had a
lot of discussions about GO Topeka and their finances. He has practiced law, he has a ot of contacts with
accountants, he works with a lot of great accountants in this town and Mize Houser is one of the best and
the auditor of GO Topeka is CBIZ, excellent firm as well. We are blessed with great accounting firms in
this town. Sometimes there are comments that are made that suggest that something weird is going on. I
assure you these guys are excellent, these firms are excellent so just a little bit of an editorial comment
there.

Allan Towle, GO Topeka Board Chair/Fidelity State Bank & Trust Co.. He is a lifelong citizen of
Topeka, a taxpayer and all of those things that go along with that privilege. First of all he would like to
thank them very much for all that they do for the community. He knows as elected officials they get

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
28




bombarded with a lot of information and that they have to learn real quick and just because they become
elected doesn’t mean you automatically know everything about everything, that they do have to do a lot
of research to make the right decisions, looking out for what’s in the best interests to our community so
he appreciates the time and effort that is necessary to do that and the questions that come up as are we
doing this right, is this the right way to do it.

He would like to address Councilwoman Hiller’s comments. One of the things in the November
Board meeting for GO Topeka, there was a lot of discussion, we have a new period of time — 17
years, with the sales tax renewing and are we doing it right. Should we be relooking at has
economic development changed, are there best practices out there that are different then what
they were. And we had a pretty lengthy discussion on that, sent back some instructions to finding
out the pricing to have a consultant to come in and look at that. As he recalls it was the following
Tuesday night that the City Council had a very similar discussion about GO Topeka towards the
end of their meeting. And so he had to at their December Board meeting, apologize because he
derailed going out and asking for a consultant’s information because it seemed to him that there
was a lot of discussion about should that evaluation be done by GO Topeka or should JEDO or
the City of the County or somebody outside of that look at that question. So rather than them
looking at it and spending money twice, that might end up having an elected official say “we
want to spend that money instead of you”, we will let you do that, that’s ok. He did talk to Jim
Colson, Topeka City Manager and at that meeting kmd of to learn a little bit about where that was

going.

And he does think that is something that does need to have some future discussion. We have
continued the discussion that needs to be done, but really derailed or stopped the process for the
immediate time with the hope that we can work with the City and the County and JEDO, however
that needs to be done, since he is not ‘as:astute to the political side of things, so that we can see
that it is done correctly and can be viewed as an independent. And he will tell them personally,
as Mr. Wietharn commented, people we hire we believe are independent or we wouldn’t hire
them to come in and audit us. We do think that is very important that what we are doing with the
taxpayer’s funds is the right thing for our community. And the reason that we went out and
raised money from the private sector was so that we could make sure that the taxpayer’s money
was being most efficiently used for incentives as most we could to get to that direction.

Mayor Wolgast thanked Mr. Towle for'providing that overview of what he sees, or what some people see
as a road we go with JEDO. ‘Whether gomg forward or new priorities and he thinks they should be
Jooked at. And that is one of the things, he is somewhat aware of the conversations that have been held
and he thinks that’s what we need to do as a body is look at a new direction or things like that. He really
thinks there is an interest and support for that and he thinks it is going to be a major, significant, cost
some money type study and he thinks maybe it should be through JEDO that it is done rather than the
City or the County or GO Topeka. So he thinks that the start is there and he thinks there is support among
some of the JEDO members to go in that direction and he appreciates Mr. Towle’s comments.

Mr. Towle responded that he does appreciate that and to be honest he doesn’t think we will see a lot of
new but we will see some refined best practices and things that have shifted a little bit over time. But he
fully expects we are going to find out that we are moving in the right direction but there are some things
we can tweak and improve on but if we find out we are completely off then we need to get back on track.

Commissioner Cook stated that draws us to a close of the speakers signed up for public comment
regarding the strategic business plan and budget. It has taken us 2 ¥ hours to get to this point, what is the
pleasure of the Board regarding the strategic plan and budget?

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
29




Commissioner Archer made a motion to remove the 860,000 dedicated to Heartland Visioning from the
2015 Budget. Commissioner Cook seconded.

Councilman Schmidt questioned if there was a plan to reallocate that $60,000 anywhere else or are we
just going to carry that over into next year?

Commissioner Archer responded that it would just be carried over, like we did for the 2014 Budget when
we removed the funding.

Following roll call vote, motion failed 2-5 with Commissioner Cook and Commissioner Archer voting
in favor and Commissioner Buhler, Mayor Wolgast, Deputy Mayor Everhart, Councilwoman Hiller
and Councilman Schmidt dissenting.

Commissionetr Cook noted that the motion fails. Are there other discussions, motions or thoughts on the
strategic business plan or budget?

Councilwoman Hiller asked if JEDO were to undertake in the course of next year, securing a consultant to
do the planning that Mr. Towle was talking about and/or decided to get some professional assistance in
setting performance goals, would we need to carve money out of that budget to just reserve it or does
Commissioner Cook know what JEDO would need to do if anything?

Commissioner Cook responded to answér that he would maybe look to our legal counsel to the specific
contract provisions with GO Topeka. Is it for the entire $5 million or is it for an amount that we would so
dedicate? f e

Mr. Eckert stated that the new contract, which is a three year contract beginning in 2015, it states that
JEDO is going to grant at least $5 million from its economic development fund to GO Topeka for the
purpose of... And then it sets forth the goals that we have outlined in the past that they have approved.
So they have to get at least $5 million. So if they agree with JEDO, then JEDO could reserve it, he thinks
it would have to be done by agreement but it also says later on that JEDO gets to set the budget. So there
is a little bit of conflict in there but he thinks they can certainly do it by agreement and he thinks if GO
Topeka refuses to, he thinks they can probably put it in the budget that way.

Commissioner Cook asked if that gave Councilwoman Hiller some clarity to her question.
Mr. Eckert stated it is not completely clear.

Councilwoman Hiller responded no it didn’t, thank you. She did not look through the budget to see if
there was a line item that was specifically for that purpose already?

Mr. Kinsinger stated he might suggest that the pluck number is the incentives amount and he would
suggest that if later next year if they decide they need funds for that, if we do it obviously early enough
we should not have expended all of those, he thinks they could direct them to do that and he thinks the
GO Topeka Board would favorably consider that. He can’t speak for the GO Topeka Board but he thinks
that would be an area that would be his recommendation as their President of GO Topeka to suggest
where to pull those funds from.

Councilman Schmidt stated that just as a matter of record keeping, before they take this vote and given
the discussion that they have had, he would like to formally request that we add an agenda item to the
next JEDO meeting to develop the process for a JEDO derived strategic plan and performance
measurements of publically allocated economic development funds. It is not a motion just simply a

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
30




request, as we were instructed earlier as JEDO Board members we have the ability to request agenda
items.

Mr. Eckert stated that the control will turn over to the City next year but what we will do is that we will
take your request and make sure that gets to City staff.

Commissioner Cook asked if there are any changes, or perhaps we should take this a two separate
measures. Are there any changes, corrections or additions to the strategic business plan that this Board
wishes to take? Seeing none, is there a motion to adopt the strategic business plan?

Commissioner Archer moved to approve the 2015 Economic Development Strategic Business Plan.
Commissioner Buhler seconded.

Councilwoman Hiller indicated that she simply wanted to mmake a statement, because of her concerns
about the performance measures, she is going to vote no. She is very supportive of GO Topeka so it is
simply a statement, because she thinks that’s very important. We’ve sort of got balled up on the issue of
establishing those performance measures by the next meeting. She would still like to see that happen. If
asking to have an agenda item for a report about progress on developing such measures is a more
appropriate way to do it then what we tried before. Can she do that? Can she ask for an agenda item
regarding development of performance measures?

Commissioner Cook stated there is a motion .on the floor as it stands presently made by Commissioner
Archer to adopt the 2015 Strategic Business Plan and was seconded by Commissioner Buhler. Obviously
Councilwoman Hiller has made known her concerns with that, but he does not believe this would be the
appropriate time to add other qualifiers for the February meeting. '

Following roll call vote, motion carried 6-1 with Councilwoman Hiller dissenting.

Commissioner Cook stated that motion passes. Next is there a motion to adopt the 2015 Budget for
JEDO. ‘

Commissioner Archer moved to approve the 2015 Budget. Commissioner Buhler seconded. Following
roll call vote, motion carried unanimously.

ITEM NO. 7: ACTION ITEM: Approve 2015 Cash Carry-Forward Agreement — GO Topeka staff.

Mr, Kinsinger stated ‘as required in the contract it is up to JEDO to approve carryover of funds for GO
Topeka to use in the future year. -As in the past, we have come forward with a draft agreement that
JEDO’s counsel has approved and this is to cover what the balance of the funds are. As they saw earlier
in the meeting there are some future commitments for contracts that were approved by JEDO previously
so this covers those and also would give us some of the cash for some of the expenditures in the budget.

Public Comment:

Joseph Ledbetter, Attorney stated he is looking at this document and it is asking to carry forward
$9,100,000 into future years. He looked at the budget, the one page document, and it says anticipated
expenditures on current commitments of approximately $1,034,600. It seems like this is a very large
amount to carry forward especially since they have not committed to buying more land and he certainly
hopes they do not. He thinks it’s ridiculous and he would also like to ask if they are getting appraisals on
that land. That should be part of their best practices, always. It’s public money. So he looks at the
amount. He says wow they certainly haven’t needed all this money in the past; they have got now almost

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
31




two years in the bank. So he finds it interesting. He doesn’t see any other governments doing, this or any
governing bodies doing this or they are quasi-governmental the way they are set up kind of as a state actor
they do economic development, which is an act of a state type of government. He just doesn’t understand
why they need to bank two years of budget. And it seem like they didn’t need as much as they have been
asking for because he is sure that money was accumulated over a long period of time. Anyway, he is not
commenting for or against, he is simply raising concerns. As a citizen, he has observed these for a
number of years now and he always has questions about it. It seems like a very large number that’s left
over from funds that were not used and that doesn’t mean we need to go buy a bunch of land to try to get
it down. We have got 600 vacant acres.

Kurt Kuta, GO Topeka Board Member/CoreFirst Bank & Trust President & CEO stated he is fairly new
to Topeka, been here about two years and he has been involved in economic development with the two
other communities and the banks that he was with in those communities. And similar to what our
librarian speaker testified to, sometimes we don’t know what we have and how well we have it. The last
two places he has been at they tried to get a sales tax initiative passed several times for both quality of life
as well as for incentive packages to attract businesses and never could get it done. So he thinks they
should all be commended for how they proposed the sales tax, how they earmark the funds for both
quality of life as well as economic development. Second place he was at, we were structured in a very
similar way as to how GO Topeka and the Chamber of Commerce are structured. They shared staff, they
shared space, had the expenses and we were also funded by the City, the County and the University, but
in a different way than sales tax. What we didn’t have was the amount of funding in order to take down
the land that GO Topeka and JEDO has in order to have shovel-ready dirt available for businesses. You
will not get past the first cut of businesses lookmg to move to a location if you don’t have shovel-ready
dirt. And so the amount of time it takes for land to get absorbed is a lot Jonger than one year. You have
got to be prepared and so having the cash on hand in order to execute options when the time is right, and
as a Board member, we have not decided that the time is right to take down that land, is very key. The
absorption period is a lot longer than a normal sales cycle. So the cash carryover piece to that he
supports. He would like to thank them f01 supporting the plan and the budget.

Councilwoman Hiller moved to approve the 2015 Cash Carry-Forward Agreement. Mayor Wolgast
seconded

Councilwoman Hiller stated she just wanted to follow up on what Mr. Kuta said and react to the earlier
comments. She thinks it is wonderful that there is money carried over, the alternative is to have just spent

it because we had it and it is important to carry it over and she appreciates the stewardship that GO
Topeka has had with those dollars and appreciates that we have it to carry forward.

Following roll call vote, motion carried unanimously.

ITEM NO. 8: Public Comment

Lazone Grays stated that he tried to call at 4:49 pm so that he would be last on the list but he guesses that
didn’t work out. He wishes that carryover could have been gotten passed with less than $30,000 or some
amount to a fund for young people in our community. People come and go, they pop up - $10 million for
a zoo, $40 million for a hotel. He goes thirteen years or so many and just keeps getting no. Not even
getting a clear discussion, or listening to a discussion on how they feel of this being even important as a
priority. When it comes to priorities he thinks that the best indicator of if economic development working
is if it is reducing unemployment, is it reducing poverty. And he doesn’t remember hearing the word
poverty at all here. With “X” amount of money, he would think that with a clear path, they could show
that they reduce poverty by “.0%”, we reduced this demographics unemployment by 2%. By having
nothing, by not setting as a priority, things can sound good and each year you can do things, such as the

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
32




robotics program which is a good program and good for young individuals. But considering
gradeschools.org, that particular high school if 10 is the highest rank and one is 0, then it is still ranked as
number 1. So some things sound good, but as he thinks someone had mentioned, when you get down into
the weeds, is it actually making a difference.

He spoke about leveraged funds because these are funds here and there are things that will happen
throughout the next year, you just never know when they are going to come up. Like the Kansas
Broadband Initiative, there is maybe some funds, he doesn’t know but it may not be enough to do
everything. Why isn’t there some process of making sure that monies are not put to the side so
that when other opportunities come up to fund some things that it’s not just solely one pot of
money that’s coming up. Part of what he has been doing with the LMI training, there are other
funds that will become available. Not that they will need a match but at least the monies will be
there so in case that a match is needed, so you can get more money to come into the area to do
other things, he would think that would just seem to be sort of prudent. But more importantly is
this part about poverty and unemployment an economic development. If economic development
can be deemed have you reduced unemployment, have you reduced poverty? If the answer is no
then people who are citizens can only look to the elected body to do something about that. We
can’t set the priorities. If he was to move out of the way when all the people who were here, you
talk about community, but that doesn’t look like the community. Where are they engaging other
people who look like him? At the table where they are made parts of discussions. It’s not here. If
he didn’t come here speaking to these issues year after year, ask yourself who else would be
coming here speaking to these specific issues? He is not here for his health because it’s not very
well but he is concerned that they think that everything is ok but that is not always the case. That
they should try to make sure that decision making is encompassing other people at the table who
look like this community.

Joseph Ledbetter, Attorney stated it is so exciting to be here and he appreciates the opportunity to speak
to the governing body of our economic development funds. He is going to respond to some of those
earlier comments. We purchased 75 acres of land on 49" Street in 2006, before any of them were even on
this Board, without an appraisal and it is still sitting there. And it was very close to utilities, could have
been developed. There is other land still in Central Crossings and he carefully listened to testimony by
the GO Topeka Chair in 2012 where he ticked off and listed off the Jand that had been bought by each of
the entities, he still has it, and there was approximately 300 acres left with just that portion of land.
Shovel-ready we’ve got more than enough shovel-ready land, what we don’t have is jobs and we have lost
a lot of jobs over the last two year, and they know it, but nobody wants to talk about it. But the word that
was just mentioned by Mr. Grays was poverty. Poverty has increased over the last several years and
before that in Topeka and that should be a concern and yet it’s never mentioned on this Board or with
these measurements. It should be part of the performance standards and it needs to be a goal that we
begin to address and reduce poverty in this community. The poor pay this tax, it is a regressive tax and
they pay proportionally more of their income than any of us on this tax for the purchases they make in this
County. They need to be considered and year after year he watches Mr. Grays and he is never considered.
He finds it reprehensible. That’s a good word for it. The carry forward monies, how much of that came
out of the small and disadvantaged part of that budget? He has seen those numbers; they have been
carried over a lot. How many people could have been helped? He is putting into the record tonight a copy
of the service agreement between GO Topeka and the Chamber and it talks about paying for Country
Club dues. He’s sure that is reducing poverty somewhere. Also putting into the record a letter to the
editor on accountability wanted for our tax money. He strongly disagrees that he was confused or
anybody else that has talked to him about these numbers, about how much money is being transferred to
the Chamber of our GO Topeka public money, he is not confused at all when he reads those. But rather
than comment on it, he is going to put some more information into the record and he is going to go back
and talk to some more people that brought him those documents originally and they may have a little

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
33




more tax expertise than he does, but he knows what he saw and he knows that he is correct, but he is just
going to drop it with that and go back and review that. These are expenses that were reimbursed by GO
Topeka in four years, this was got through a KORA to the Topeka Capital Journal and they shared those
with him and said at no cost, they were able to get that. He is going to ask for an extension to speak at
this time.

Commissioner Cook stated there has been a request by Mr. Ledbetter for an extension of time to speak. Is
there a motion? Seeing none, thank you very much.

Mr. Ledbetter replied thank you for not listening. He appreciates it.
Councilwoman Hiller indicated that she thinks we need to take a short bfeak.

Commissioner Cook stated that he has been notified that we need to take a short break to change the tape.
We almost made it. So Ms. Nohe will be next up on pubhc comment aﬂel we change the tape.

Camille Nohe, League of Women Voters stated pnmauly she wanted to let them know the league has
started a study of JEDO. They are six months into what they believe will be a two year study. And they
hope to come up with some constructive recommendations for the JEDO at the conclusion of that study.
She would like to just bring to their attention, she was very heartened by Deputy Mayor Everhart’s
discussion that she initiated, she touched on a number of issues that they have considered. And she would
like to let them know about some resources that she has come across in doing this study. One is a Pugh
report, from the Pugh Foundation on objectives and performance measures for economic development
entities and it has some very good information in it and recommendations. There is also such a thing as a
performance audit for economic development entities. She found online the performance audit for the
City of San Diego. Google search is a wonderful thing. San Diego is much bigger but they had some
constructive recommendations and some criticisms of the San Diego Economic Development she thinks
it is an in-house agency. Also in Topeka, Dr. Paul Burn at Washburn, he teaches economics and he has
an area of expertise in economic development. He is going to come to speak to our JEDO study group in
January and she would think he would be a good resource and would know who they could contact to do
the kind of sefting objectives, goals and performance measures, she just thinks he would be
knowledgeable in that area.. So she wanted to bring | that to their attention.

Commlssmner Archer asked 1fthey were working with anyone specifically with GO Topeka or one of the
JEDO members. He thinks that might bea good idea.

Ms. Nohe rephed not yet but yes they plan to. What they have done is reviewed all of the minutes from
JEDO since the begmmng and summarized each year. Which they will be glad to make available at some
point to people who are new to JEDO. We have looked at what some other cities are doing in terms of
their structure and whether they are getting money. We have looked at that Pugh Report and spent a lot
of time discussing that. We have developed a list of people we are going to interview, which would be
past JEDO members, and possibly current JEDO members. She is not sure how much people are willing
or able to talk. GO Topeka Board of Directors, current and some past members, so we do want to talk to
all of those folks as well and she thinks they have some other people in mind too. So that is why it is
taking them two years, they have a long agenda.

Carol Marple stated that she keeps changing her mind on what she wants to say in the public comments.
And she does pay attention to protocol so would Commissioner Cook ask Mayor Wolgast and
Commissioner Buhler if they have any kind of position on the Heartland Visioning group. Are they on
the Board of the Heartland Visioning organization? That is a question for Commissioner Cook to ask to
those individuals.

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
34




Commissioner Cook responded that historically, traditionally this isn’t a question and answer period,
although if either one of them wish to speak or respond.

Commissioner Buhler stated yes voluntarily she does serve on the Management Committee; she has
served on the Steering Committee and has since the beginning of Heartland Visioning. She is not
compensated, it is purely voluntary.

Ms. Marple questioned is that not a conflict of interest to vote to give them money?

Commissioner Buhler responded she does not believe so. This body has to allocate it in the budget and
then it has to go to the separate governing bodies as well.

Ms. Marple responded but they allocated it to the budget and she is connected with them.

Mayor Wolgast stated he is on the Steering Committee which is a group of about 60 community people
who meet on monthly basis working on the goals and objectives of Heartland Visioning.

Ms. Marple stated to her that doesn’t seem right that they are connected to this Board or this organization
and they just voted to give them money.

Commissioner Buhler replied that it is fully disclosed on her conflict of interest with Heartland Visioning,
And all her conflicts of interest, it is fully dlsclosed that she serves on the Board of the County
Commissioners.

Ms. Marple responded that shé kind of thinks that they shduld have passed on the vote.
Commissioner Buhler replied that is her opinion.
Commissioner Cook asked if Ms, Marplé had anymoré comments.

Ms. Marple stated yes she did. She would like to thank Commissioner Archer and Commissioner Cook
for voting no to fund them for $60,000. She has sat here for many years and listened. The funding was
withdrawn as she remembers and she did not intend to speak about this because we could see no good that
it did. And in less than six months, we have funded them again. Now she has heard Mr, Grays speak
about poverty, unemployment and to her that’s important. That $60,000 could have better been served by
having somebody use it to give jobs to our youth., She doesn’t understand the mindset. We are not
addressing, she doesn’t feel, the needs of our community. We all like to have fun, we like to do things,
but if we don’t have jobs and we don’t keep our children, our young adults out of mischief we are not
doing our job. She thinks that is our priority, not Heartland Visioning especially where they have already
had money, she believes it was started in 2008 and she could be wrong, they have had years of money
from the taxpayer dollar and not done well and Mr. Grays has never had an opportunity to do anything.
And since she is out of time and she knows everybody wants to go home she will not make anymore
comments.

Commissioner Cook stated he would remind that we do have as upcoming meetings, Agenda Item No. 9,
we have upcoming meetings on: Wednesday, February 11, 2015, Wednesday, May 13, 2015, Wednesday,
September 9, 2015 and Wednesday, December 9, 2015, which will be chaired by Mayor Wolgast or his
designee as the rules so allow. Thank you for the year of allowing him to chair JEDO.

NO FURTHER BUSINESS appearing the meeting was adjourned at 9:05 p.m.

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
35




City of Topeka & Shawnee County

o~  JOINT

__/ ECONOMIC
47 DEVELOPMENT
4 ORGANIZATION

Uwited For g?mwﬁ}é

Agenda Item No. 2.

JEDO Infrastructure Report




Joint Economic Development Organization

Cash Statement

As of December 31, 2014

Receipts:

Sales Tax - City of Topeka

Sales Tax - Shawnee County

Interest Income "
Total Receipts

Dishursements:

City of Topeka
Topeka Blvd Bridge Debt Service
SW 21st St - City Limits to Urish

Shawnee County -
County Bridges
SE 45th St - Adams to California
NW 46th St & N Topeka Blvd

GO Topeka
Publication Expense for RFP
Audit Charges
Bank Charges
Total Disbursements

Net Receipts (Disbursements)
Bank Balance - January 1, 2014

Bank Balance - December 31, 2014

Note: This is a cash basis report
Prepared by Brandon Kauffman

S 3,240,650.00

140,000.00

$

7,905,667.48
7,247,571.91
410.66

1,500,000.00
4,432,174.66
1,850,665.07

15,153,650.05

3,380,650.00

7,782,839.73

4,999,999.92
37872
4,235.00
146.47

16,168,249.84

(1,014,599.79)

6,897,910.67

5,883,310.88

211118




SLLie

sjerosdde joBpnq joefoud jeuiBuo uodn paseq si SifiH Uelpu] - PY YSKN ISLZ MS ‘8100 Buipuelsino sey jiis py Uskn 0} sy R0 181Z NS ‘aeidwoo w.oc ale sjoafold «

590'PL0°'6S $  2/6'6P2'SS  919°L5p$ 09" 00L'L $ 8LLZPL'9S 921'30LS mcm nm\. 98 eIt ohw 9% L8 mno 9% 0zL .vcm LS 8L0" ch ‘v$ mmm 199'2$  L18'€LL$ fejoL
[USEIgeT; 80 ! 3 ; j 3 b DR VI U X EMEUEN, M2 NS
« S{lIH UEIpU} - Py USUMN 3812 MS

1\Y'elz28 66vE0  § 1066 $ V:E_

vL0Z €102 2102 1102 0102 6002 woo,w 2002

sj09l0id 0Q3r




City of Topeka & Shawnee County

7  JOINT

_/ ECONOMIC
47 DEVELOPMENT
¢ ORGANIZATION

- United Fore ?ﬁ@éﬁfé

Agenda Item No. 3

Incentive Contract
Project Blue Sky




Spo0o4 13d MeaH 3ig
:A)S an|g 109loud

eyadoj oo
&



sqol oz 01 dn qol pauielal Jad QQETS -
sqol zT 01 dn gol mau Jad QQQES -
sjuswanosdwi [eyided Joj 09/ ‘¢8S 01 dN

9AIUadU| pasodoud

sqol pauleial 0¢

sqofmau g .

Avij1oey "3} "bs 0000 S1ewixoiddy

JudWI1SaAU| |ended ul uoljjiw €' zyS 01 dn

109lo4d pasodoid

mv_g_oho@ Spoo4 13d MeaH Sig/Ajs an|g 13foad




%< SI 10Y |enuue paldafoid
paiuels si Jusawaleqe xel JedA QT e 3ulwnsse yoegAed JeaA ¢ ueyl ssa .
JUSWIISIAUI UO paseq pailetold SI Jusawisanul [eyide) «

JUSWISIAU] WNWIUIW UOI|[IW 0ZS

sieaA QT 109y 2 1snW SUOI1ISOd

uoljew.oju] J9Ylo

09/°99TS :|e1oL

00097 :(0) sqof pauielay
000°9€S :(zT) sqol maN
09/‘¢8S :1uswisaAul [enide)

SAIU3IU| WNWIXEA |e10]

mﬁmwﬁo (r3u03) spoo4 194 1eaH 38ig/A)s on|g 109fo.d




INCENTIVE AGREEMENT

This Incentive Agreement is effective , 20, and is entered into

between the following parties:

GO TOPEKA: GROWTH ORGANIZATION OF TOPEKA/SHAWNEE COUNTY, INC.
120 SE 6th Avenue, Suite 110
Topeka, KS 66603-3515
Phone: (785) 234-2644
FAX: (785) 234-8656
Contact Person/Title:  Douglas Kinsinger, President and CEO

BUSINESS: BIG HEART PET BRANDS
A Delaware Corporation
2200 NW Brickyard Road
Topeka, Kansas 66618
Phone:
FAX:
Contact Person/Title: Mr. Jim Green; Controller

WHEREAS, BUSINESS is a Delaware corporation that is in good standing and qualified to do
business under the laws of Kansas; and

WHEREAS, BUSINESS is contemplating investing approximately Forty-Two Million, Three
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($42,300,000) over approximately two years to expand, renovate and equip its
manufacturing facilities to add a packaging plant located at or near 2200 NW Brickyard in Topeka, Kansas;
and

WHEREAS, such packaging plant, or at least that pottion of it being expanded and incentivized
hereby, is referred to herein as the “Bxpanded Facility,” consists of approximately 70,000 square feet, and
shall not include BUSINESS’ distribution center, its dry manufacturing plant facilities, or the “Topeka
Facility” (as the same was referred to in the Incentive Agreement dated December 14, 2012), all of which
have been previously incentivized by Incentive Agreements dated November 1, 2008, June 25, 2010, and
December 14, 2012, respectively. The incentive funds also shall not be applied to any other Topeka facilities
not being improved and incentivized hereby; and

WHEREAS, as a result of the expansion and renovation BUSINESS will be able to retain twenty
(20) employment positions at the Expanded Facility that would otherwise likely be lost, and add up to eight

(8), but possibly as many as twelve (12), new positions; and
|




WHEREAS, GO TOPEKA desites to assist and promote BUSINESS in expanding its operations in
‘Topeka, Kansas, by offering up to One Hundred Sixty-Six Thousand Seven Hundred Sixty Dollars ($166,760)

in local incentives; and

WHEREAS, BUSINESS, acting in reliance upon the incentives set forth in this Agreement, has
decided to expand its operations in Topeka, Kansas; and
WHEREAS, the parties wish to memotialize their understanding regarding the details of the
incentive package to this legally enforceable contract.
WITNESSETH:
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of such mutual benefits and of the mutual covenants and
agreements expressed herein, the parties covenant and agree as follows:
1. Local Incentive.
a. Project Investment. Subject to the requitements and provisions of this
Agreement, GO TOPEKA shall pay to BUSINESS a local incentive in the amount of up to Fighty-
Four Thousand Seven Hundred Sixty Dollars ($84,760) within Three (3) months after BUSINESS
has shown that it has completed new investment of at least Twenty Million Dollars ($20,000,000) up
to (or exceeding) Forty-Two Million Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($42,300,000) in the
construction, renovation ot equipping of the Expanded TFacility for purposes of supporting and
employing the employment positions contemplated herein; provided, however, that only that
investment and expenditures for and at the Expanded Facility made by December 31, 2016, qualify
for this incentive (and for any other incentives hereunder). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if
BUSINESS fails to invest at least Twenty Million Dollars ($20,000,000) in the Expanded Facility by
December 31, 2016, ot if the Expanded Facility is not substantially completed by that same date, no
incentives shall be due hereunder (whether based on the investment or employment positions
discussed below). However, if BUSINESS invests more than Twenty Million Dollars ($20,000,000)
but less than Forty-Two Million, Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($42,300,000) the investment
incentive shall be propotrtionately reduced. For example, if BUSINESS invests Thirty Million Dollars
($30,000,000), it would only be entitled to an incentive of $60,113 [30,000,000/42,300,000 * $84,760].
b. Retained Full Time Employment Positions. For each of the Twenty (20)
Retained Full Time Employment Positions (defined below) in place when the Expanded Facility
becomes operational, GO TOPEKA shall pay a one-time employment incentive to BUSINESS of

Two Thousand Three Hundred Dollars ($2300), within approximately three months after the

2




Expanded Facility becomes operational; provided that BUSINESS in fact has or continues to have
those positions in place and documents the same for GO TOPEKA sufficiently prior to the payment
date as discussed below.

Only those Retained Full Time Employment Positions existing as of the effective date of
this Agreement and still in place when the Expanded Facility becomes operational (which shall occur
no later than June 30, 2017) shall qualify as Retained Full Time Employment Positions. BUSINESS
represents that as of the date hereof it has Twenty (20) Retained Full Time Employment Positions
eligible for the employment incentive. With the fully executed copy of this Agreement, BUSINESS
shall identify for GO TOPEKA the Twenty (20) Retained Full Time Employment Positions
specifically being retained and incentivized pursuant hereto, and provide GO TOPEKA employment
incentive calculation documentation verifying the existence and retention thereof (as discussed
below). BUSINESS shall also document for GO TOPEKA that these positions ate not being
incentivized by one of the prior Incentive Agreements. BUSINESS shall also be able to document to
GO TOPEKA that these retained positions are sepatately tracked and maintained apart from
BUSINESS’ other operations.

A Retained Full Time Employment Position is a single position that has a minimum of 2080
paid hours of service (annually) at the Expanded Facility with an annual average wage of Forty-Five
Thousand One Hundred Dollars ($45,100) (when averaged against the other proposed Retained Full
Time Employment Positions at the Expanded Facility), plus benefits including health insurance.
BUSINESS shall only qualify for an employment incentive for a Retained Full Time Position if it has
made a minimum of a Twenty Million Dollar investment in the Expanded Facility as contemplated
herein.

c. New Full Time Employment Positions, For each New Full Time Employment
Position (defined below), up to a maximum of twelve (12) at the compensation levels discussed
below, GO TOPEKA shall pay an incentive to BUSINESS a one-time employment incentive of
Three Thousand Dollats ($3000) for those New Full Time Employment Position positions For each
position, the applicable incentive shall be paid by GO TOPEKA to BUSINESS by the end of May in
the year following the calendar year in which each position is added; provided, that BUSINESS must
first provide GO TOPEKA with sufficient documentation relating to such employment levels (as
required elsewhere herein). All positions to be incentivized hereunder must and shall be added by

June 30, 2017.




A New Full Time Employment Position is a position that does not exist at the time this
Agreement is signed and has a minimum of 2080 paid hours of service (annually) at the Expanded
Facility, with an average annual wage of at least Thirty-Eight Thousand Dollars ($38,000) when
averaged actoss the twelve (12) new positions, plus benefits including health insurance. BUSINESS
shall only qualify for an employment incentive for a New Full Time Position if it has consistently
maintained the Twenty (20) Retained Full Time Employment Positions and made a minimum of a
Twenty Million Dollar investment in the Expanded Facility as contemplated herein.

d. General Provisions. As used hetein “Full Time Employment Position” shall
generally refer to both New and Retained Full Time Employment Positions. Only those Full Time
Employment Positions engaged in manufacturing process at the Fxpanded Facility shall be eligible
for the employment incentive contemplated hetein. Employment positions incentivized pursuant to
the prior Incentive Agteements dated November 1, 2008, June 25, 2010, and December 14, 2012,
shall not be eligible for the employment incentive contemplated herein. Each Full Time
Employment Position for which an employment incentive is paid must be maintained for ten
calendar years after the year in which the position was added. If, after receiving an employment
incentive payment for a Full Time Employment Position, BUSINESS scales back, eliminates, or
otherwise fails to maintain a position for the full ten (10) consecutive calendar years required hereby,
BUSINESS shall refund to GO TOPEKA a propottional amount of the employment incentive
received to date for that position for the partially completed year and remaining of the ten (10)
calendars years for which the position was to be maintained. (Subject to other requirements of this
Agtreement including default provisions), business may retain the proportional amount of the
received incentive for the completed years during which the position was maintained). Such
calculation shall be made without credit or consideration for whether the position may later be, or is,
again added or maintained. BUSINESS shall repay such refund within three (3) months after the
position reduction is revealed or discovered (whichever occurs first). For example, if an incentivized
New Full Time Employment Position is added in 2017, and $3000 received in 2018, but such
position is eliminated in 2020, BUSINESS would refund to GO TOPEKA §$2100: [Seven
incomplete years divided by 10 * 3000]

Nothing herein shall require that an eligible position be held by the same person, nor shall
this Agreement preclude BUSINESS from changing the title, purpose or utility of a position (as long
as it meets the other requirements identified herein), but the minimum average annual wage must be

maintained. To be eligible for an employment incentive pursuant to herein, a position must be one

4




which has the BUSINESS withholding and paying all federal and state employment taxes attributable

to the employee. BUSINESS may not combine two or more employment positions to meet the

definition of a Full Time Employment Position.

e. Maximum Incentive. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the total
amount paid by GO TOPEKA under this Agreement shall not exceed One Hundred Sixty-Six
Thousand Seven Hundred Sixty Dollars ($166,760).

2. Incentive Calculation Documentation. When and as reasonably requested by GO TOPEKA,
BUSINESS shall ptovide GO TOPEKA with invoices and state and federal employment, tax returns,
BUSINESS Quatterly Payroll Reports, the BUSINESS General Ledger Extract for Investment, or other
reasonably necessary documentation to establish investment in and at the Expanded Facility and employment
levels for purposes of calculating employment incentives and monitoring BUSINESS’s performance
hereunder. GO TOPEKA is granted the right to audit financial documents at any time during this
Agreement. GO TOPEKA is granted the right to reduce payments made to the BUSINESS by amounts
found to be impropet, unauthorized or unsubstantiated. GO TOPEKA shall have sole authority in this
regard and shall base its decision upon information submitted, including absence of documents to
substantiate expenditure. BUSINESS shall reimburse GO TOPEKA one-half (/2) of the cost, not to exceed
One Thousand Dollars ($1000) to BUSINESS pet incentive year, for such calculation, monitoring and/or
audit. GO TOPEKA uses a thitd patty firm to perform this review. GO TOPEKA will notify BUSINESS
of the expected date and time for such review to be petformed and BUSINESS will have the option of
contacting such third party fitm to ascertain the type of records the third party firm needs to conduct the
review.

3. Use of Funds. The funds received by BUSINESS pursuant hereto shall be used for the purpose
of purchasing machinery and equipment for, or improvement or construction of, the Expanded Facility, or
for the relocation of machinery and equipment or training of persons to be employed at the Expanded
Facility.

4. Default.

a. A default shall occur if BUSINESS in any way fails to comply with or breaches any
term or requirement of this Agreement.

C. In the event of a default, GO TOPEKA shall not be required to make any further
incentive payments or transfers under this Agreement, and BUSINESS shall repay to GO TOPEKA

the entire amount of all payments received by or for the benefit of BUSINESS pursuant hereto, plus




interest at a rate of Eight Percent (8%) per annum from the date such amounts were received by
BUSINESS.

d. In no event shall BUSINESS be liable or responsible for repayment of incentives
hereunder in respect to any delay in the petformance of, or failure to perform, any action required
under this Incentive Agreement, whether in whole or in patt to the extent that such delay or failure is
caused by any of the following causes: war; acts of terrorism; fire; severe weather; extraordinary
natural occurrence; epidemic; earthquake; labor disturbances, strike, abnormal business downturns
which are beyond the reasonable control of the BUSINESS or other causes beyond the reasonable
control of the employer (but excluding market forces with the exception of a recession as discussed
below), in each case whether foreseeable or unforeseeable, and the time for performance shall be
extended for the duration of any such delay or one year, whichever period is shorter.

6. Notices. Any notices requited or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement may be
delivered in person or mailed, certified mail, return receipt requested, to the addresses identified above.
7. Miscellaneous. The following miscellaneous provisions shall apply to this Agreement:

a. BUSINESS shall make every reasonable effort to retain Shawnee County, Kansas-
based contractors in the improvement of or additions to the Expanded Facility.

b. BUSINESS agtees to make every reasonable effort to use Shawnee County, Kansas-
based vendors for the purchase or procurement of the machinery and equipment contemplated
herein.

c BUSINESS agrees to make every reasonable effort to use, if qualified, Shawnee
County residents to fill the Full Time Employment Positions at the Expanded Facility.

d. BUSINESS shall provide prompt advance notice to GO TOPEKA of any material
change in BUSINESS’ ownetship, conttol or management, including issues of insolvency ot
bankruptcy, or other material changes that could reasonably result in a default by BUSINESS undet
any agreement to which it is a party related to the matters set forth herein, or a change in the Full
Time Employment Positions maintained at the Expanded Facility.

e. BUSINESS agrees to participate in a public event with GO TOPEKA at the
Expanded Facility celebrating the location of the Expanded Facility and employment expansion
contemplated by this Agreement. Such event would include general recognition of GO TOPEKA's
and the Topeka and Shawnee County Joint Economic Development Organization’s (“JEDO”)

involvement in the project.




f. This writing contains the entire agreement teached between the parties hereto with
respect to the subject matter hereof, and may be amended only in writing, duly executed by all patties
concerned.

g This Agreement shall be interpreted under the laws of the State of Kansas, with
venue being solely in the state District Coutt of Shawnee County, Kansas. If any provision is found
to be unenforceable or unconstitutional, all other provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

h. Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

1. By signing this Agreement, the patties affirm that they have the authority of their
respective entities to enter into this Agreement and bind their respective entities.

j- This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the patties to this Agreement,
their heirs, legal representatives, assignees, transferors and successors.

k. No failure by a party to insist on prompt performance by the other party of its
obligations hereunder shall constitute a waiver of rights under the Agreement. Similatly, the waiver
by a party of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a
watver of any subsequent breach of that same or any other provision.

1L This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each counterpart shall be deemed
an original, and, when taken together with other signed counterparts, shall constitute one agreement,
which shall be binding upon and effective as to all parties.

m. The parties acknowledge and agree that BUSINESS shall not assign, transfer,
hypothecate or otherwise encumber this Agreement and its rights hereunder, without the prior
written approval of GO TOPEKA.

' 1. Sarbanes-Oxley and similar legislation may have application to, or affect the
accounting for, this Agreement by BUSINESS.

o. GO TOPEKA makes no tepresentation as to the taxability or tax effect of this
Agreement and the incentive payments hereunder.

p- GO TOPEKA’s obligations hereunder are contingent upon approval of this
Agreement by JEDO and the continued funding of GO TOPEKA at adequate levels through a
pottion of the Shawnee County, Kansas, retailer’s sales tax and/or by JEDO. GO TOPEKA may
unilaterally reduce or eliminate any payments hereunder in the event that sufficient funds ate not
available (taking into account GO TOPEKA’s other obligations). GO TOPEKA will endeavor to
give BUSINESS advance notice of any reduction of funds when practical. BUSINESS agrees and

understands that if there are not sufficient funds appropriated or available to GO TOPEKA to
7




continue to make any payments hereunder (taking into account GO TOPEKA’s other obligations),
GO TOPEKA may terminate this Agreement with written notice of termination to BUSINESS. The
reduction ot elimination of any payments, and/or termination of this Agreement putsuant to this
paragraph, shall not cause any penalty or damages to be charged to GO TOPEKA and BUSINESS
waives and releases any rights, causes of action ot claims it may have should such insufficiency of
funds occur.

q. In carrying out the terms and provisions of this Agreement, BUSINESS shall not
unlawfully discriminate against any employee, applicant for employment, recipient of service or
applicant to receive or provide services because of race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, national
origin or any other status protected by applicable federal or state Jaw or local ordinance.

I. Every duty, right, or obligation contained in this Agreement imposes an obligation
of good faith in its performance or enforcement. For the purposes of the Agreement, "good faith"
dealing means honesty in fact in the conduct or the transaction concerned.

8. Nothing herein contained shall be construed or held to make any party a partner,
joint venturer or associate of another patty in the conduct of its business, nor shall either party be
deemed the agent of the other, it being expressly understood and agreed that the relationship
between the Parties hereto is and shall at all times remain contractual as provided by the terms and

conditions of this Agreement.




t. The parties agree to execute and deliver such other documents, agreements or
instruments as may be necessaty ot convenient to effect the purposes of this Agreement and to

comply with any of the terms hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date and year
first above written.
“BUSINESS”
BIG HEART PET BRANDS
By:

Print Name:

Title:

“GO TOPEKA”
GROWTH ORGANIZATION OF TOPEKA/SHAWNEE COUNTY, INC.

By

Print Name:

Title:




City of Topeka & Shawnee County

JOINT

__/ ECONOMIC
47 DEVELOPMENT
4 ORGANIZATION

- United For gf“@a/i}é

Agenda Item No. 4.

Presentation — GO Topeka 4™ Quarter
Year End Report and 2015 Upcoming Highlights




ST0T ‘TT Aleniqgad ‘Sunasiy pieog Oaar
Alewwng snjels e)adoj 0O

eyadoj 0o
C



O

9414 ezue)| 10} dJom udisap a3eusdis undaq aneH _

pI2Y uaaq aAey s3uiloaw (SNXaN |euolday sesuey) Ny 2|dinAl

SIUSAS 9|di}nw je eaJe 3y SullSyJew panuiuo) _

ungaqg sey udisap 1SgaM pue s|eldalew 3ulisyJew MapN _
Jaylo/umouwjun ‘sia1uad elep ‘SaJIAISS |BlDUBUL 8 A

90USIS0Ig € A

uolNguIsIp ¢ A
92IAJ3S JWO0ISNI g A
sulinioejnuew Qg A

:5109/04d Jo sodA]
Jauenb 7 9yl Ul pauado g YUM [|BISAO T

s3d3foud juasin)

dIHSH3INLYYd DINONOD3

e)adoj oo

uolldeINY Ssauisng MaN



weJtSoad aouelsisse Sululel) 92105J0M S,UeI19/\ B 240|dX3 03 SNUIIUOD

swelSoud Suluiesy Suipjom puedxa 01 sAem je Suo00T]

9A|OAD ued welSoud Yool -|A 2yl moy yaal uingysepn yim 3uissnasiq

1IWWING SIJIAIDS [BIdUBUI4 B UO S0 3uluulsag _
A)S an|g 109loud
si9lienbpesay 4SNgG POUSIA o

Jauenb i 9yl ul pauado T YlIM [|BISAO €T

:s333l0.d uaiin)

mv_mn_ﬁoo juswdojanag a2i1o0pdo0pN /ssauisng SullsiX]




(£ |udy) wnio4 diysiapeaT aAIle1lIU] S,UBWOAN
(Y2 Ya4e|Al) 2InJusp\ MBN e
(€2 YyoJelp) Suluue|d UuoISsaINs e
(8T 'ge4) zzng 1sepjealg .
(6 'go4) Suluue|d d1891L41S .
Suiuiey s, eaA siyi Joj dn Suliean
91ep 01 9deds ay3 pasn/paJtnol aney ajdoad OOt
;S Adenugad Suluado puels .
suoljenouu| ZT.z

S99PUIIE OGT /SUOISSDS OM] PIOH

|ooyas T0S asN YHm ssauisng 3uioq

(agi3) wuswdojanag

m_v_g_ohoo ssauisng Allioulp R jelanauaidasul




(lpndepuag 1j@aN -q J9yeads yum T AejA) spiemy ssauisng [[ewS A
(TT — 7 AeIN) @3\ ssauisng [|ews A
:91ep 3yl 9AeS .

uaydlly |elnJawwo) .
pun{ ueo 9|geAlS.04 .
pun4 ueo] AJ9A029Y Ja1sesIq e

Yyimous Joj saniunijioddo suipuedx3

(@agn3) auswdojanag

mv_waohoo ssauisng AJLIOUIIAl 9 |elinduaidasu]




City of Topeka & Shawnee County

"  JOINT

__/ ECONOMIC
47 DEVELOPMENT
¢~ ORGANIZATION

United For Growth

Agenda Item No. 5.

GO Topeka Target Market Study




W09 BUNSUODBYDUEB|EAY MMM

dIHSHINLYYd DJIWONOCD3

e)adoj 0o
)

GL0Z ‘L1 Aeniged

a1epdn Abejeng Ansnpuj 1ebiel
eyado] 09



suonsanp
soway| o1bs1ens
sausnpuj 1ebie|

INJINSSISSV IAILILAdINOD

SUOIJONPOJIU|

VANdDV



$79 SN “ONILINSNOD JHONVIVAY :3D34NOS ISW3 8 S79 SN “ONILTNSNOD FHONVIVAY :3DdNOS
©» > O > £ W - g Z

TYeEfFsiesgeg ot " "0

— Sl — — —r 1 — — pa— — — — — L 1

AN M M N = N KN KN KN WO °40°S

1 L L L 1 L L 1 o
%E'L | sn
- %07 m .
- %0°G
%29 SOSURY|
- %09
- o+ %02
0,€°g AJuno?D) saumnyg

L %0'8

KD OUMDYS = SPSURN o= SN0

7 L0 LSO = £ L0 UE2XC) ZAEOCE 6002

31V INFWAOTdWIANN HLIMOJD INIWAOTdWS dOL1D3S JLVAIAd

ALNNOD ddNMVHS NI
HLMOdHO LNJWAO 1dIN4



ISW3 WOUJ4 Y1vVd DONISN DONILTNSNOD FHONVIVAY HDINOS
7 102-600T ‘Yimois) |pio]
%6 %L %S %E %l %L- %S+

NIV =)

R T
ind/ Ul Db ol O R =

90

()]

==

b _\_._Eu_o“_::_os_

Ajpjidso % ainsiaq

—
[01 20 %2e] .
uolbwiojuj
seulilN 3
‘uolypjiodsuni] ‘apni] o
0
] 1 1 1 L 01 hllw...
o
=
€« asupuly S
D1 0L “%6S] E—— o
*SOAS °ZIg B [01¥°L “%01-] TN
[puoissajoid ustiuIdA0H S
) "SIAS Yi|P3H B "P3 =

*aspq
juswAojdws
I SAlD[o. S3RIPUI ﬁ

3|9qnq 40 8215

S 'ALNNOD JANMVHS - SANTIL AYLSNANI JONvW




dIHSYINLYYC DIWONOD3 Aiod 8218WWOD

exadoj 0o N Sursso1)y [pu)

mw(%r R WeeiNgo
i

VSN/ALNNOD JINMVHS
SVSNW ‘WI3dOl
O

S311S AdVdd 1dAOHS HLIM
d341NdO SOILSIDO]



4SN FONILINSNOD FJHIONVIVAY 3D34N0OS 4SN “ONILINSNOD FJHONVIVAY 303N0OS

001$ 0s$ 0$ 001$ 0S$ 0%

_ _ 56 g "Bu3 |0o109)3 _ _ ScS g Bug |ooupydsy
7S o S2sAud g'e$ o 'S 49indwod
8'G¢ m "Pul [polwsyd ev¢$ g "Bug [pa1wsyd
G'/Z$ W HOM IPIOS ¢ gl "Bua A

Q' L1 g SSOUSIDS B4 ISIW | ¢y o sdlwouooy
0ClL$ Agsiwsyd 6°/$ ml s21sAud
o6 _.W S92US15C yhip3 O@W Hl .mcm 2SIW
£0C$ uolpaNnpy 9°LLS mml SSOUSIS OsIW
0'6/$ 19 [PIIPSW o'z mmmmmmm °S [°°150|0!g
/6% PG [p21B0o|oIg o8 | 115G [pANyNOLIBY

(SNOITTIW) 10T ‘SYSNVY (SNOITTIW) T 10T ‘ALISYIAINN

40 ALISYIAINN — SATIIH HOYVISIY 1SFOAV1 J1V1S SVSNV — SA13ld HOY4V3ISIY 1STOAV1

SAILISHIAINN HOHVIS3d
ONIHJOdHOIAN OML



Nv33Ng SNSNID SN “ONILINSNOD FJHONVTVAY 3Dd4NOS

%9 %V %< %0
%¥°0 SN
%0" | _31111 SPSUDY|
%L°G AJuno?) aaumnyg

%Ly

pyado] Jo A1

€10¢ —800¢

AWODNI ATOHISNOH NVIAIW NI HIMOJO

V3¥Ng SNSND SN "ONILINSNOD FHONVIVAY 30¥NOS
000°09$ 0000¥$ 000°0T$ 0$

SN

SOSUDY|

AunoD) saumnygs

pyado] jo AlD

€lL0¢
AWODNI ATOH3ISNOH NVIdIW

SANWOONI ATOHASNOH DNIMOHDO



SIDV1d LS39 SONITIIAS “ONILINSNOD FHONVTVAY 3DINOS

00l oS 0
001 SN
76 S ‘uplpyudW
68 Q) ‘@ousumpT
7é S ‘AlD) spsupy
76 Sl ‘pyjedo)

¥10¢

ONILVY 1SOD HI1V3IH

S3OV1d LS39 SONITYIAS “ONILTNSNOD FHONVIVAY 30dN0OS

0clL ooL 08 09 Or 0OC O
001 “ SN
LOL [ | 3t ‘uouoyuow
96 i S ‘edusimp
g8 | , S ‘AuD spsunyy
€8 | | 53 ‘edoy

710Z
ONIAIT 4O LSOD T1VIIAO

ONIAIT F198vVAdH044V



Nv34Ng SNSNID SN “ONILINSNOD FJHONVIVAY 310d4N0OS Nv3¥nd SNSNID SN <ONILINSNOD FJHONVIVAY 3D4NOS

el, zl, LL, oL, 60, 80, ) %9 %V  %C %0  %C-
- 006G L- _ _ _ | ;
e - 00S- L
dee | M 0 048" * | SOSUDY|
00¢ L
000’1 %¥'C Ajuno) ssumpyg
005’1
L 000 %9°0- pyado] jo AHD
uolPIBIW 19N m  9SPa.du| [PINION g

€10Z — 800T ‘ALD JAINMVHS €10Z —800¢

JONVHD NOILVINdOd 4O SININOdWOD HLIMOYO NOILVINdOd

ALINN1HOddO NV
SI NOILNd1ldd INJ1VL



SdI SN “ONILINSNOD FHONVIVAY 304NOS S¥I SN “ONILINSNOD FJHONVIVAY 31DdNOS

0 00S- 000L- 00S'L- 008 009 OO 00T O

| _ _ ' Q)] ‘edusimp _ _ _ 88 I S ‘pueg vl
X1 ‘ospd |3 06 g S ‘uosiydry
MO ‘AD pwoyspPO 26 m S ‘Awuno) uosisysf
OD “sAue(q LOL mm| SM ‘sARH
0D ‘sbulidg oppiojod) Ol mml S) ‘Aunod Asyjod
X1 ‘oluojuy ung 901 mml S ‘AinoD sssunpgpAA
VD ‘aplsionly 6ST " S ‘Auno) ebpsO
MO ‘ps|ng /1€ oo - S ‘AunoD) uosyppr
X1 ‘se|pg GeS mmmmmmn| S ‘Plodug
SH-OW ‘AlD spsup)) 19 | [ SOl ‘upypyupY

L LOZ — 9002 ‘ALNNOD FJINMYHS L LOZ — 900T ‘ALNNOD

WOUd SINVIOIW 4O SNOILVYNILSIA 0L dOL  FJANMVHS Ol SINVIODIW 40 SIDINOS Ol dOL

NOILVAOIN-1LNO
ANV NOILVEOIIN-NI



Nv33ng SNSNID SN “ONILTNSNOD FJHONVIVAY 3DINOS

%089 %S¢T %0
%S I SN
%8C , , | SPSUDY|
%S | AjunoD) asumbnyg
%S € y2do] Jo AUD

€10¢ — 800¢

ALIIAOC NI NOILVINdOd NI HLMOJO

Nv3dng SNSNID SN “ONILTNSNOD FJHONVIVAY 3D4N0OS

%0¢ %01 %0

Yol | SOSURY|

& L0
ALIIAOC NI NOILVINdOd 1V1O0L 40 %

&

AdAO IdWIANN dHL

ONOINV ATTHVINIAd — ONISIH ALHdAOd



NY3INg SNSNID SN “ONILINSNOD FHONVIVAY 30¥NOS NV3ING SNSNID SN “ONILINSNOD FHONVIVAY 3D¥NOS
%0 Yot~ %8- %L~ %06 %08 %0Z %09 %0S

, ..\..Wi | SPSUR} %98 Rk , SPSUR}

Gl OA=/00¢C Z 102 (S33A01dW4

S3SSANISNG TIYWS NI HIMOJO 4IM34 O 0Z) SASSANISNG TIVWS %

o d3a1O9NdLs dAVH S3SSANISNG TIVINS



NOILYANNOA XV.L “ONILTNSNOD FJHONVIVAY 3D4N0S
o¢ OFr 0€ 0¢ Ol 0

| 1 1 I 1 1

ze soX3|
cl RLGYR PO
8¢ DHSRIGSN
9 11NOSSIW
3¢ SOSUD)|

opp.Io|oD)

€10¢

JANVY ININOJWOD XVI ALdddOdd ILVIS

NOILYANNO4 XVL “ONILINSNOD FJHONVIVAY 3DINOS

oS 0] 4 o€ 0c ol 0

L 1 1 1 1

SoX3|

qe |

| dwoyPO

1€ |

| PSPIGSN

oL

1INOSSIW

9T |

SOSULY|

81l

opb.JojoD)

€10c

JANVY FLVWITD XVL SSANISNG TTVIIAO F1VIS

AOVd XVL dHL 40 F1ddiN ATLNIddNO

&



Ny334Ng SNSNID SN “ONILINSNOD FJHONVIVAY 3D4NOS

09 oy (074 0
G'6¢ SOSUDY|
. - Ayunod
8'o¥ a2uMbyg
809 o3edo] jo AuD

€10¢

SIN3AISIY 000°L d3d SIWIID ALIIdOYd

Nv334Ng SNSNID SN “ONILINSNOD FHONVIVAY 32dNOS

9

S ¥

€ ¢ L 0

I 1 1 I

N
™

SN

SOSUDY)|

choe

SIN3AISIY 000°L ¥3d SAWIID INITOIA

dNIHO ddHOIH

® SNOILdJTDH3d 41T 40 ALITTVNO



Aljige|iene JoyIom pajiwi] ssoaul|pusu-Aliwe .

Sjuaplsal bululelal sulaouo) . Aljgepioyy -
paAojdwaun jendeo ajglg .
Buowe Auanod Buisiy NSY pue NY 01 AjlwIXold e
(uojbuiysep) epus|s) Jepun ‘Yoa| ¥ ‘M uinqysepn e
Alpidels Buibueyn) — sjesse syJed |euisnpu| e
SsSauISNg ||[ews palosuuoosI(] uoleo0] .
:UJ192U09 JO sealy :S)]9SSk shoJawnp
SAVMYIMNVYL LOMS



suolnsanp

saway| oibaiens
SAIHLSNANI 1I39YVL
JUBWISSASSY aAladw oD

suoljonpoU|

VANIOV



s|eob pue uolIsIA wis) Buo| s,eyado] sayodlely -

9WooUl pue ‘s||Iys ‘uolleonps
ybiy 0} mo| — saniunuoddo Jealed Jo abuel e JaljQ .

soljaw Bulwiopadiapun ssaippe [lIN e
s|00] s.eMado] 09 Aq pejoaye aq ue) .
Joddns 3 yum Jarse; molb o] |enusiod e
sjosse bulsixa AqQ [|om paniag .

A|leqolb pue Ajjeuoljeu BUIMOIS)

1394VLV NI 404 MOO'1 OL 1IVHM



ISW3 ‘ONILTNSNOD FHDONVYIVAY D3N 0S
(8¢€) %C- MGGy $ 6°0 685’1 uounqLisiq g sousiboq

09¢ %L1 M8V ey eTv'e Burinppynuow pood
L0V %VE< D ONYA L1 809°1 ABiaug ups|D
7Y %1 M9 EVS el 068/l |P2IpswWolg
Ces1's ) %se O£V 'L $80°02 IO Py
[ %S 1" M6'89% 00 8¢ UOLDIAY
M3N 13N | 1vD01 JOVM | o1 sgor A TSTANI
¥102-600Z 'HLMOUS 10T ‘ALNNOD FJANMVHS

FIONVWIOHIId AJLSNANI 13DIVL - VIIdOL OO

¢SdOor
d31v3d0O S139dVL INJdddNO HOIHM



yoJeasali 0} Ajlwixoud Jajeid — ueneyuep
¥ 80UaIMeT WoJ) uonnedwoo aoe) seiuedwod yosjolg .
slojoasqns Jayjo ||e ul sqol bululjpap pue maj — Buouls s|ejdsoH

[edlpawiolg

2oueINsSU| pue sdoueuld Se yons siooas buiAed-ybiy ul [enuajod e
Juswdojanap olwouoos Aq pajoaye Ajises jou pue ‘BulAed-moj
‘Alesjodwa)] aiem asay) Jo Auew 1ng ‘sqol Jo spuesnoy) pajeal) .

391JJO Yoeg

S1e]s JO JNO pue ul sisisn(o paysljgelse yum uonnadwood buoe .
sgol ou }sowje Inq — aiay SI ainjoniiseljul 8y

UOIJCIAY

o MAINTH AGVINNNS 139dVL INJHdNO



yibuauis Juesyiubis e |j11s ao1id pue uoi}ed0T .
sgol Buiso| Buisnoyaiem pue Bupjons]

uonnqu}siq ' Sonsibo-|

sieaA Jusdal ul Bupjulys 1ng palesiusouod sqol poo4 1o -
1ealb Bulop ||e - oquiig ‘s Josay ‘AeT-0lli4 ‘SIe|\

Burin}oejnuepy poo4

obe sieaA ¢ peajoipaid se Awouoos ay) Jo Jeis Buisll B JON
_ues|D, 10u ‘Buiuiyoew g uoiesausb jamod ||e sqol bunsixg .

ABiaug ues|)

o MIINTH AAVINNNS 1J9dVL INJHdNO



NOILNGIYLSIA B SOILSIO0T <€ NOILNGIAILSIA 2 SOILSIDO01T

O

'HD3L SW3LSAS IDNVAQY €— A9¥IN3 NVID

"SOAS "ZI9 8 TVNOISSId0dd €— 301440 >IOV4d

TP o I Yl | A Yl
I 9 9 s V ' AW

S1390dV1 MAN S1390dV1 SNOIAIdd

S14044d SWAMJdOL OO ONISNO04dd
@



SODIAISG
fioddng soununsuj

SODIAISG [PIDUbULY

suolpiadQ
poddng sypiodiod

Ajandag
swalsAg Japndwod)

SADIAY3S
Hl?,:q» Adi)uzﬂg

8 TVNOISS3d0ud

uolnqLisic
% BUISNOYSIDAA
spNpo.d
polpisblijay

uounqLisiq 1Py

BuIsSNOYSIDAA
[SIEUETS)

$poo4 Ppug
Pood +8d

spoo4 oiundsiy

spoo4
paindaig ysaiq

Apund

3 RN A e a2\ A = UAl
ONRINLOVANNVIN

i 'aYTe |
O f& = |

sdoyg suiyopw

sa1b6ojouyds]
ABisug ubs|D

Burinpoinuow
jusuodwod)
I19Y1O ¢ Sdopdsousy

1 SO TN L

Y
&Y )= |
AD0TONHOAL
\)~< A= I © o~
WA = b
n\\[ L win o NP
= R = 'akv 4
ﬁ,l._ﬂm\;_{ (r,,r,/ﬂq v

SJOLD3S FHDIN ® SIIILSNANI 13DYV1 — VIIdOL OO




sjuswanosdwi 8)1] Jo Ajilenb AQ pajoaye aq 0} |[eljuslod
Buifed Jaybiy — Ajjeoo| sqol jo 10| e sajeal) .

SOJIAI0S Ssoulsng 'R [eUOISSaj0id

sSno0J aydiu ybnouyy Jayuni moib Ajjenusijod uep .
S]oSse |eo0| bulsixe yojew pue buimolb Apuaiingy .

uonnqisiq % sonsibo] pue Buninjoejnuepy poo

paJinbal ‘npe sse| Yyum saiiunlioddo Jjesied buolis sejeal) .
ddo pue spodxa asealoul [lINM e

ABojouyo9a] SWa}SAG podUBAPY

¢S1d19dVLI 4S3dH1L AHM



SSouaJeMY O2JOIONN o
‘BJI\ JO uondaoiad -
:sobuajjeyn

|O0YOS 1 0G MSN
"yoa| uinqysepn
ooedg Jaye| MaN
Aligepioyy @ SSUS
:s}ossy eyjado|

sdoys sulyoepy ‘seibojouyos] Abisuz ues|)
‘buninjoejnuep\ Jusuodwon 4syjQ ¥ eoedsoisy :S9YdIN

uonuaAui pue uonaonpoid Lie ay} JO d)e}s
— Bulinjoejnuew pjo ayj} 3, usi siy|

ADOTONHOAL SINJ1SAS A34ONVAAY



A|leoo bululpoag pood 19d -
siofojdw3 Bunsix3g InO Buipmos)
:sobuajjeyn

sol)sibo] .
Buiuiel] Q 92I0JOAN e

Allligepioyy g SO)S -
:s)}ossy eyado|

SPOoO0- XoBUS ‘SPO0- }Jod
‘Spoo- oluedsiH ‘spoo- paledaid ysaid Apues :saysiN

yesH big ‘s,lIH ‘oquiig ‘@juoy\ je@ AeT-0jL ‘Siey\ ‘S.19S8Y
— eyodo| ul BuinLy) Siainjoejnuewl pooyj [eqoje) jasinod ayj) Aels

> ONIFNLOVANNVYIN dOO4



sasnoyalep) bulby .
uolewolny
:sobuajjeyn

Buluiel| R S2J0JOAN o
AJlligepioyy @ SOUS -
L# UOIJBO0T

:s]ossy eyado|

uonnqujsiqg ® buisnoyaiep) S}onpold pajeleblijoy
‘uonnqusi Jiey ‘buisnoyaiep) jeleuss) :SaydiIN

uoissaoal ay) ybno.uayy pauijosp
sqofl Aym puejsispun o} siafojdwas jeoo] abebus o) pasN

NOILNGIH1SId ® SOILSIDO |

@



ooedg 20O paywI] -
i1 Jo Ayjjenp .
uondaolad -
:sabuajjeyn

| ____v.__. A
e ______ «.ﬁ.\\kﬁb 3

leydey
Alligepiody .
‘N uinqysepn -
|90X3 SIOSIAPY ‘Ujauag Alunoag — saiuedwo) .
:s]ossy eyado|

seoINBeS poddnS eoueinsul ‘Sedines [eloukeul ‘suoljeiadQ
yoddns ejeiodion Ainoes ¥ swWolsAS 4epndwo) saydIN

Z.Sjeuoissajoud jo aseq ab.iej e yons pey exadoj mauy oym

o> S3DINGAS TVIONVNIL ® TVNOISSI404dd



AlunoD eaumeys ul sgol mau 1Se2810} ||B JO %05
salsnpul 1861e) ul sqol mau 1seoalo) 00Z' |

ISW3 ‘“ONILTINSNOD FHONVIVAY “ADINOS

Gl9 %S 6199 0l 8r4'C1 "SOAG [PIdUBULY @ “JOld

8¢ %Y MG Sr$ 60 685'1 uounqiusiq g solsIBoT

8l %S M8 e ey eTr'e Burinjopjnuow Poo4

80% %65 ML 67$ 01 860°1 "Yo3] sAG PIJUDAPY
M3N 13N ~o\o 1vDO01 JOVM . o1 sgor P —

610Z - ¥10T 'LSVDIYOA4 10T ‘ALNNOD JANMVHS

S1SVDIIO4 AJLSNANI 139dVL MAN - VIIdOL OO

S1SVOdd04d 1494dV1 MAN



suolnsanp

S3N3IHL JI1931VHlS
salsnpul 10bie|
JUBWISSOSSY aAlllledwo)

suolonNpPoU|

VANIOV



AlAIIOBUU0D pue sajel AJjin aAiedwod papincid

Bulpuny pue xe)
Juswdojanap 21wouoo9 Jo abessed pue uoddns Ajlunwwo)

sjosse bulinjoejnuew pue |eoalsibo| bunayien

suolelado alow
9]epowwWwoo2ke 0] WOooJ YIm syled [euisnpul paubisap-|[opn

swelboud |\NT 1S jooyos ybiy Buipuedxs pue ‘Yyosa]
uingysep) ‘Alisieaiun uingysep) Ul sjesse [euoljeonpse jueoyiublg

S 1T1dM IANOd M dAVH LVHM



sjeuolssajold BunoA Joj AjJenolued ‘saijio sesuey
Jay]o uey] saljiuswe [ein}nod Jamaj siayo exyado] 1ey) uondeoiad

sioyiom o|gejieAe jo Ajddns 1ybiy Ajbuisealou
S99Jn0sal JJoddns Jayjo pue ssauisng |jews pa1osuuoosiq
S|00] pue sloye s.ejado] 09 Jo ssaualeme pajwi]

SJoyJoM Mau Bunoeape Ajnoiyip pue sjuapisal JO SSOT

¢(30V4d AM Od SAONITIVHO 1LVHM



j1ejap Jajealb ul sabuajjeyd asay} ssaippe o} adoas puedxs 0} [elpudjod

swelbold ssauisng [jews Jo Bunsylew pue AJIAIJOSUUOD 8SEeaIoU|
SOAIllellIUl 82J0I0M § UOI}eoNpa [euoijewlojsuel} yoddng

ue|d suonesiunwwod g Ajuspl puelq ul }SSAU|

Juswabebua ybnoay) 1sniy AHunwiwos pjing .

SHOJe uollezi|eliAa) UMOJUMOP 81 l9[80dy

adoos s .eyedo| 0o Buipuedxs JapIsSuo) .

(SAONITIVHO

- dNO SS3dddv Ol Od M NVO LVHM



SNOILS3ND

soway | o1bsiens
salsnpu| 1ebue|
JUBWISSOSSY aAlllladwo)

SUOI}ONPOJIU]

VANIOV



W09 BUIINSUODBYOUB|BAY MMM

dIHSH3IN1YYd JIWONOD3

e)2do] 0o

102 ‘11 Aeniged

alepdn Abajeng Ansnpuj 18bie]
exadol 09



suolsanp

soway| olbslens
salsnpu| 1eblie|
1UBWISSasSSY aAlllladwo)

SNOILONAOJdLNI

VANdDV



Jue}jnsuo)
‘oulg|es 9||eoN

INILTINASNOD

o%EQQ@

jue}jnsuo)d
‘Isine@ Auol

} > — . Juspisald
N e g g1 .>m>>0__0_|_ >E<
SNOILONAOdLNI



sBuipul} 11oday

so|ijoid pue 1s1| Aisnpul 196.e) ayepdn
aouewlopad Alsnpul 196181 mainey

‘spuaJ] olydesbowep pue 21LoU0O9 s)en|en]

ABejens Ansnpui 186iey 010z s.exadol 09
99oUIS pabueyd aAey S1oSSe |B20| pue SolWeUAp 19)IeN

ANNOYOMOVE 103drodd



Aewwng 1 OMS

Ohmupum Wvﬂﬂﬂﬂw@ s}ebie] JuswISsassy
. pajepdn s|yoid 193e
- jsr1eepdn  Induj Jeploysyels

uonoy buneye :
Q Ue|d uonoy aouewopad MBINDY
[enuuy MaINSY 196.18] MaInay uonew.ou|

ajepdn
pue
MDIADY

MBIADY
ue|d

Aisnpuj
}obie|

uonoy

Aenliga

SI1gvHaIAITEa

~dn-ies

100loid

. e

12q0100

ADOTOdOHLIN 103rodd



City of Topeka & Shawnee County

#~  JOINT
{ECONOMIC
47 DEVELOPMENT
4 ORGANIZATION

UWited For ﬁ&mf&%

Meeting Handouts — Public Comment




What are some best i)ractices for board operations? Page 1 of 2

What are some best practices for board operations?

Implementing "best practices” for building and running a board effectively can help you further your cause with confidence. Here are some top issues to consider.

Board size
Federal law doesn’t dictate board size, but state laws often establish a minimum (typically one to three members).

Beyond legal requirements, the number of board members will depend largely on your organization’s needs. Before you decide on size, it's best to think about
your needs. Do you want to create a diverse board with varied skills, knowledge and experience to support your organization and match the needs of a diverse
constituency? To determine the right number for your organization, think about the dynamics between members and their ability to accomplish tasks. Consider
whether adding more will help or hinder in this regard.

Quorum

A quorum s the minimum number of members that must be present at a meeting to make the proceedings of that meeting valid. This is typically established in an
organization’s bylaws, although in some cases state law will determine the quorum. Often the quorum for a meeting of the board is one-third of its total members,
or two directors (whichever is higher).

Effective meeting planning

To ensure full participation and thoughtfut decision making in the best interest of the organization, board meetings should always be carefully planned, facilitated
and documented for implementation and follow-up.

Here's how you can keep meetings on track:

Q 1. Begin with a clear, focused agenda. Agendas should address mesting topics and outline goals for discussion. Deliver the agenda to board members at
least a week in advance. You may also want fo compile an organizational update, key background needed for decision-making points and highlights of the
latest “good news.”

2. During the meeting, stick closely to the agenda to make good use of everyone’s time. Focus on getting resuits and critical decision-making at every
meeting.
:' 3. Make attendance mandatory. Develop policies around meetings and hold members accountable. if a meeting is scheduled but agenda items have
changed, don’t waste members' time. Reschedule for another, more appropriate day.
(‘3 4. Ask fow This allows members to include topics of interest, increasing the likelihood of attendance and helping to keep them
engaged while there. This can also help the executive director better understand where members stand on important issues.
5. Schedule time for discussion and networking among members. Give members the opportunity to get to know each other and build their own professional
networks.

Executive directors and founders as members

While an executive director is often a member of the board, involved in board discussions and information sharing, he or she is rarely granted a vote. After all, the
board is technically the executive director’s employer and conflicts of interest could arise. To guard against this, both the board and the executive director should
act independently from each other —~ the executive director as leader of the organization and the board in a governance role. Because of their passion and
commitment, founders may want to directly exert their influence over the organization as a member of the board. Ultimately, the answer to this question rests in
the founder's ability to use his or her skills and experience to move the organization’s mission forward at the governance level. As a board member, a founder can
be granted a vote. This means he or she should be able to effectively address the organization’s needs and provide guidance and support.

Term limits give both the board member and the organization an opportunity to determine if continued service is in the best interest of both parties. To ensure the
organization’s ability to bring in fresh perspectives and expertise and foster its ability to be flexible and responsive to changing needs, many nonprofits set defined
terms for their board members. These typically range from one to four years. However, some nonprofits choose not to adopt a limit - typically when an
organization will benefit from the continued involvement of strong, active members. When developing policy in this area, think carefully about the needs of your
organization and your funders.

Board committees

Board committees help optimize individual expertise and diversity by allowing the board to use resources more effectively. By operating in smaller groups,
members can often accomplish more than if the board acted as a whole, particularly where issues are complex or numerous.

Certain types of committees may be required by faw. In California, for example, charities with gross revenues exceeding $2 million must establish an audit
committee.

Board orientation

Puone Corannead Hondiood — Mo atst: e

http://monprofitanswerguide.org/fag/boards-governance/what-are-some-best-practices-for-b... 2/11/2015




What are some best practices for board operations? Page 2 of 2

Board orientation is critical to getting organization-wide buy-in to your mission, values, organizational identity and strategic plans. It helps improve communication
and participation, and it empowers new members with the tools they need to steward your nonprofit in the community. Orientation prepares your board members
to provide informed guidance and support in governance issues, allowing your organization to make better use of their expertise.

Remember, board orientation is key:
1. Develop an orientation manual outlining what each member needs to know about service and your organization.

2. Give your board the tools they need to excel. Regulariy update members on key organizational issues and good works.
3. Use mentoring and ongoing education to help members feel prepared.

Learn more! Get Getting On Board with Effective Orientation (www.boardsource.org (http://nonprofitanswerguide.orgiresources/boardsource/}). This

BoardSource Toolkit can help you design your board orientation materials and training sessions.

Executive director evaluations

Executive director evaluations are a significant component of a board’s responsibilities. They are critical to ensuring the executive director is in sync with a board,
and driving the organization forward, toward its mission. Evaluations also help to clarify expectations and set goals for the future.

For more information about executive director evaluations, read Managing People (http://nonprofitanswerguide.org/fag/managing-peoplel).

Boards & Governance FAQ )

1. What are the basic responsibilities of a board and the legal duties of board members? {http:/inonprofitanswerquide.org/fag/boards-
overnancel/basic-responsibilities-of-a-board-and-the-legal-duties-of-board-members/

How dogs the board ensure the organization is mission dnven? http:/inonprofitanswerguide.org/fag/boards-governancefhow-does-the-hoard-
ensure-the-organization-is-mission-driven/’

board-operations/)

4. Where do we find board members') http:/inon roftanswer ulde org/fag/boards-governancelwhere-do-we-fi nd-board-membersl

6. How do we get hoard members engaged for our nonprofit cause? (http://nonprofitanswerguide.org/fag/boards-governance/get-board-members-

engaged-in-nonprofit-cause/}

Facebook Comments Website Comments

Comment using facebook, share your thoughts with us.

Add a comment... l

Facebook social plugin

OUR PARTNERS

(hitp:/Inonprofitanswerguide.org/about/partners/)
Ga} Hershey Cause

Communications for Good®

Interested in becoming a partner? Click here — (httg:llnongroﬁtanswerguide.orglabout/gartnérslinguirel)

http://monprofitanswergunide.org/faq/boards-governance/what-are-some-best-practices-for-b... 2/11/2015




What are the basic responsibilities of a board and the legal duties of board members? Page 1 of 2

What are the basic responsibilities of a board and the legal duties of board
members?

The board is legally responsible for the operation of the nonprofit organization for which it serves. In fact, individual members can even be held personally liable
for improper conduct if they breach their duties. So, pay careful attention to the law and board duties. Doing so will help you minimize risk and ensure your
organization is the best it can be.

Standards of Conduct

Under the law, each board member must meet certain standards of conduct. These standards are typically described as duty of care, duty of loyalty and duty of
obedience.

1. Duty of Care
board member must exercise ‘reasonable care” when he or she makes a decision for the organization. In this case, “reasonable” is what a prudent person
in a similar situation might do.

2. Duty of Loyalty
board member must never use information gained through his or her position for personal gain. This means each member must always act in the best
interests of the organization.

3. Duty of Obedience
A board member must be faithful to the organization's mission. This means he or she cannot act in a way that is inconsistent with the organization’s goals.

Board Responsibilities

In addition to standards of conduct, as a governing body, the board has a responsibility to support management and staff, and ensure operations run smoothly
and in accordance with the law.

Following, are 10 responsibilities of nonprofit boards:

. Establish mission and purpose.

. Select the executive director.

. Support and evaluate the executive director.

. Set policies and ensure effective planning.

. Monitor and strengthen programs and services.

. Ensure adequate financial resources.

. Protect assets and provide proper financial oversight.
. Build a competent board.

. Ensure legal and ethical integrity.

. Enhance the organization’s public standing.

O WO NG WN S

=y

Source: Ten Basic Responsibilities of Nonprofit Boards, Second Edition, by Richard 7\' Ingram (BoardSource 2009).

Laws and Guidelines Governing Boards

In 2002, the U.S. govemnment passed the American Competitiveness and Corporate Accountability Act (a.k.a. the Sarbanes-Oxley Act), which regulates the
financial controls of corporate boards.

The Act itself doesn’t apply to nonprofits, but there are a number of provisions you might want to adopt voluntarily, particularly as they relate to board oversight
and committees, disclosure, document retention, whistleblower policies and audits. We're not alone in this recommendation. In its publication, Compliance Guide
for 501©(3) Public Charities, the internal Revenue Service recommends that nonprofits consider whether such govemance practices are necessary to ensure
sound operations and compliance with tax law.

it's also important to note that Sarbanes-Oxley may be relevant to your nonprofit in that it inspired a number of state laws that govern nonprofits, such as the
California Nonprofit Integrity Act of 2004, which addresses registration of a charity, financlal reporting, auditing and other areas relevant to a nonprofit's finances
and management. And remember, state laws vary, so it's important that you become familiar with relevant legistation in your area of operations.

Boards & Governance FAQ

1. What are the basnc res OnSlbllltleS of a board and the legal duties of board members? (http://nonprofitanswerguide.ora/faa/boards-

ensure-the-organization-is-mission-driven/)

3. What are some best practices for board operations? (hitp://nonprofitanswerguide.org/fagiboards-governance/what-are-some-best-practices-for-

board-operations/,

4. Where do we find board members" (http: Ilnonprof‘tanswergulde org/fag/boards-governance/where- do-we-fnd-board-membersl[

Ju’l Locllnadbiy & m‘»)\ C (/O“LUM rc‘a — \‘\(bx&\&‘f\v
htto://nonprofitanswerguide.org/fag/boards-governance/basic-responsibilities-of-a-board-a... 2/11/2015




What are the basic responsibilities of a board and the legal duties of board members? Page 2 of 2

6. How do we get board members engaged for our nonprofit cause? (http://nonprofitanswerguide.ora/faa/boards-governance/get-board-members-

engaged-in-nonprofit-cause/}

7. icati i 7 H i ide.
communicating-effectively/}
8. What are bylaws and why do we need them? (http://nonprofitanswerguide.org/fag/boards-governance/what-are-bylaws-and-why-tdo-we-need-

board-member/)

How important is board assessment? (http://nonprofitanswerguide.org/fag/boards-

Facebook Comments Website Comments

L
Comment using facebook, share your thoughts with us.

: "Add acomment...

! Comment using... I

acebook soctal plugin

OUR PARTNERS

(http://nonprofitanswerguide.org/about/partners/)
Gt} Hershey Cause

Commmynicationg for Good *

Interested in becoming a partner? Click here —» (http://nonprofitanswerquide.org/about/partners/inguire/)

http://monprofitanswerguide.org/fag/boards-governance/basic-responsibilities-of-a-board-a... 2/11/2015




Joseph Ledbetter

From: Betty Phillips [betty@networksplus.net]
Sent: Thursday, February 05, 2015 10:45 AM
To: Joseph Ledbetter

Subject: 5-22-14 Hi-Crest NIA Minutes

MINUTES - 2014
HI-CREST NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION MONTHLY MEETING
Avondale East Elementary

Date: May 22, 2014
Attendance: 20

Program: Chad Sublet, City Attorney, provided details about the City's legal
operations and confirmed that GO Topeka and any government-funded
organization must comply with appropriate questions covered by the Kansas
Open Records Act whether KORA is specifically mentioned in a contract or
not.

Kevin Beck and David Bevens reported on the status of the sidewalks to be installed, indicating the
project should be started no later than September 1.

Roseanna Haugen presented slides and answered questions regarding the €311 program
through topeka.org and the Nextdoor program.

Treasurer's Report: Sandy was absent.
Citizen Advisory Council Report: Sandy was absent.

Minutes: Betty Phillips read the New Business portion of the April 24, 2014 meeting and it
was approved as read.

Announcements: Community Police Officer Kevin Schulz distributed crime reports,
reported they executed five search warrants on drug houses and took a report from a
member regarding a drug house. Members also reported people are speeding through
the intersections of Golf Park and Fremont and Golf Park and Irvingham.

1

Dodie Comnentnd - Noo Ledbeba o




Sylvia Ortiz reminded everyone about the Takeover/Makeover May 24 and will
report the addresses where people are running stop signs.

Joe updated everyone on the sidewalk situation and why he invited Kevin
Beck and David Bevens to attend and report on our sidewalk project. He also
reported on the pothole situation and about speaking before the city council to
request funds for Hi-Crest streets from the Capital Improvement budget.

Old Business: None

New Business: Nellie Hogan made a motion regarding the sidewalk on SE
33d Terrace that it remain on the south side as recommended by Schmidt,
Beck & Boyd Engineering, LLC. Betty Phillips seconded the motion and it
passed unanimously, with Joe Ledbetter abstaining.

The Door Prize was won by Nellie Hogan.
The meeting adjourned about 8:15 pm.

Betty Phillips, Secretary




H. HURST COFFMAN, J.D.
5. LUCKY DaFRIES, J.D,
AUSTIN NOTHERN, J.3., LL.M.

SUSAN KREHBIEL WILLIANM, J.0.

JEFFREY A, WIETHARN, J.D.”
LANCE A. WEEKS, J.Dy, LL.M."
JOSHUA A, DECKER, J,D.

PALSO ADMITTED 1N MISSQURI

Joseph R. Ledbetter

LAW OFFICES
COFFMAN, DeFRIES & NOTHERN
A PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION
534 5. KANSAS AVENUE, SUITE 825
TOPEKA, KANSAS
66603-3407

December 30, 2014

1734 SW Van Buren St.

Topeka, KS 66612

Dear Joe:

TELEPHONE (785) 234-3461
Fax (785) 234-3363

BARNEY J. HEENEY, JR,, LL.M. (RET.)
J. R. BROFF, J.D. (2012) |
HAROLD R. SCHROEDER, J.D. (1986)
LEQNARD H. AXE, §.1.D. (1975) -

T -am in receipt of the records request emailed to GO Topeka on.
T have been instructed to inform you that GO
Topeka will not be providing you with the minutes you requested.

December 29, 2014.

ce: Doug Kinsinger

Very truly yours,

Jeffrey A. Wietharn

COFFMAN, DeFRIES & NOTHERN
A Professional Association




Print Page 1 of 1

Subject KORA REQUEST
From: Carol Marple (hedgetree@yahoo com)
To: ssmathers@gotopeka com; dkmsmger@topekachamber org councnl@topeka org

Date: Monday February 2, 2015 " 30 AM

The members of the Compensation Board of Go Topeka, 2014--2013 and Doug
Kinsinger's salary and bonus for 2014.

Carol Marple

10249 SW Wanamaker Rd

Wakarusa Ks. 66546

el Mrple- Puishic (oo
thHnae //m-mg6 mail vahoo com/neo/launch?.rand=5ekvfluvkdmbc 2/8/2015




LAW OFFICES

COFFMAN, DeFRIES & NOTHERN
A PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION
534 S. KANSAS AVENUE, SUITE 925
H. HURST COFFMAN, J.D. TOPEKA, KANSAS

S. LUCKY DeFRIES, J.D.
AUSTIN NOTHERN, J.D., LL.M. 66603-3407
SUSAN KREHBIEL WILLIAM, J.D.

JEFFREY A. WIETHARN, J.D." BARNEY J. HEENEY, JR., LL.M. (RET.)

LANCE A. WEEKS, J.D., LL.M." J. R. GROFF, J4.D. (2012)
JOSHUA A. DECKER, .D. HAROLD R. SCHROEDER, J.D, (1986}

February 5 ; 2015 LEONARD H. AXE, §.J.D. 1975)

TELEPHONE (785) 234-346]
Fax {(7B5) 234-3363

*ALSO ADMITTED IN MISSOURI

Carol Marple
10249 SW Wanamaker Rd.
Wakarusa KS 66546

Dear. Mrxs. Marple: . .. . _ . B L

GO Topeka is in receipt of your email inguiry dated
February 2, 2015. Although GO Topeka does not consider itself to
be a public entity that is generally subject to KORA, it does try
to respond to inguiries from the public. However, due to other
pressing matters this week, my understanding is that GO Topeka will
not be able to consider your request until next week at the
earliest. I appreciate your patience.

Very truly yours,

Jéffrey A. Wietharn
COFFMAN, DeFRIES & NOTHERN
A Professional Association

JAW:ni
cc: Doug Kinsinger




Print Page 1 of 1

Subject KORA REQUEST Dec 15 2014
From: Carol Marple (hedgetree@yahoo com)
To: ssmathers@gotopeka com, dkmsmger@topekachamber org

Date: Monday December 15 2014 8 44 PM

KORA REQUEST

1) Interest earned on carry over funds 2013-2014. % of interest earned, where
the earnings are listed on budget, where money is located. :

2) Doug Kinsinger's 2011 employment contract with the Topeka Chamber of
Commerce and Go Topeka, including both board ratifications and the discussion
of said contract.

3) Criteria used in 2011 to award bonuses to Mr. Kinsinger and who approves the
-- the Topeka Chamber of Commerce, Go Topeka Board or another ?

Thank you, Carol Marple 10249 SW Wanamaker Rd. Wakarusa Ks. 66546

(ool Masrple - Bublic (e

https://us-me6.mail . vahoo.com/neo/launch?.rand=al 9a4fe 7rmiju7 2/11/2015




LAW OFFICES

COFFMAN, DeFRIES & NOTH ERN
A PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION

534 5. KANSAS AVENUE, SUITE 925
TeLErHONE (785) 234-3461

H. HURST COFFMAN, J.D. TOPEKA, KANSAS )
... Si LUCKY DeFRIES, J.D. Fax (7B5) 234-3363
AUSTIN NOTHERN, J.D.; LL.M. 66603-3407
SUSAN KREHBIEL WILLIAM, J.D.
JEFFREY A, WIETHARN, J.D.* . BARNEY J, HEENEY, JR., LL.M. (RET.)
LANGE A, WEEKS, J.D,, LL.M.* J. R. GROFF, J.D. (2012)
HAROLD R, SCHROEDER, J.D. (1286)

JOSHUA A. DECKER, J.D.
LEONARD H. AXE, 5...D. (1975)

December 17, 2014

4ALSO ADMITTED [N MISSOURI

Carol Marple
10249 SW Wanamaker Rd.
Wakarusa KS 66546

Dear Mrg. Marple:

G0 Topeka is in receipt of your email inquiry dated
December 15, 2014. Although GO Topeka does not consider itself to
be a public entity that is generally subject to KORA, it does try
to respond to ingquiries from the public. However, due to resources
and research required, my understanding is that GO Topeka will not
be able to consider your request until next week at the earliest.

I appreciate your patience.

Very truly yours,

ey
Jeffrey A. Wietharn

COFFMAN, DeFRIES & NOTHERN
A Profeggional Association

JAW:ni ,
cc: Doug Kinginger




H. HURST COFFMAN, J.D.
5. LUCKY DeFRIES, J.D.

AUSTIN NOTHERN, J.0.; LL. M.
SUSAN KREHBIEL WILLIAM, J.D.
JEFFREY A. WIETHARN, J.D.*
LANCE A. WEEKS, J.D., LL.M.}
JOSHUA A. DECKER, J.D,

TALSO ADMITTED I MISSCURI

Carol Marple
10249 SW Wanamaker Rd.
Wakarusa, KS 66546

Dear Mrs. Marple:

the carry over funds.

LAW OFFICES

COFFMAN, DeFRIES & NOTHERN
A PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION
534 S. KANSAS AVENUE, SUITE 825
TOPEKA, KANSAS
66603-3407

December 23, 2014

TeLEpHONE (785) 234-346]
Fax (788) 234-3363

BARNEY J. HEENEY, JR., LL.M, (RET.)
J. R. GROFF, J.D. (2012)
HAROLD R, SCHROEDER, J.D. (1956)
LEONARD H. AXE, S.J.D, {1975)

Enclosed is information from GO Topeka'sg accountants regarding
Regarding the other records you seek, which

concern expenditures from non-public dollars regarding personnel
and therefore of a confidential nature, those will not be produced.

Enclosure

ccC:

Doug Kinginger

Very truly yours,

Jeffrey A. Wietharn

COFFMAN, DeFRIES & NOTHERN
A Profegsional Association




Sales tax funds are held ina manner that preserves principal and provides for liquidity.

ately $5.781 million of the sales tax'funds are held at Core First Bank

As of October 31, 2014, approxim
his arrangement provides for pbacking with Federal government

under a repurchase agreement. T
securities. The current interest rate on these funds is .01%.

Another $2.165 million is held in an investment account with US Bank, of which $1.196 million is held in
a money market fund of US Treasury obligations and $969 thousand is held in various commercial bank

certificates of deposit. The approximate current interest rate is .16%.

Interest income Was $3,227 for 2013 and account fees for the same period were $2,897. Interest
income was $2,899 for the ten months ended October 31, 2014 and account fees for the same period

were 51,055. investment income is included in the budget as part of Other Income.




two years in the bank. So he finds it interesting. He doesn’t see any other governments doing this or any
governing bodies doing this or they are quasi-governmental the way they are set up kind of as a state actor
they do economic development, which is an act of a state type of government. He just doesn’t understand
why they need to bank two years of budget. And it seem like they didn’t need as much as they have been
asking for because he is sure that money was accumulated over a long period of time. Anyway, he is not
commenting for or against, he is simply raising concerns. As a citizen, he has observed these for a
number of years now and he always has questions about it. It seems like a very large number that’s left
over from funds that were not used and that doesn’t mean we need to go buy a bunch of land to try to get
it down. We have got 600 vacant actes.

nt & CEO stated he is fairly new
gonomic development with the two
unities. And similar to what our
nd how well we have it. The last

Kurt Kuta, GO Topeka Board Member/CoreFirst Bank & Trust Pregi
to Topeka, been here about two years and he has been involved
other communities and the banks that he was with in tho
librarian speaker testified to, sometimes we don’t know wi

as well as for incentive packages to attract busines
should all be commended for how they propose
quality of life as well as economic development.

shared space, had the expenses and we were also fund

in a different way than sales tax. What.we didn’t have wa
to have shovel-ready dirt available for businesses. You
cation if you don’t have shovel-ready

will not get past the first cut of business
dirt. And so the amount of time it takes
got to be prepared and so havi

wn that land, is very key The
S6:dhe cash carryover piece to that he
plan and the budget.

h Carryp-Forward Agreement. Mayor Wolgast

Following roll call motion carried unanimously.

ITEM NO. 8: Public Com

Lazone Grays stated that he tried to call at 4:49 pm so that he would be last on the list but he guesses that
didn’t work out. He wishes that cartyover could have been gotten passed with less than $30,000 or some
amount to a fund for young people in our community. People come and go, they pop up - $10 million for
a zoo, $40 million for a hotel. He goes thirteen years or so many and just keeps getting no. Not even
getting a clear discussion, or listening to a discussion on how they feel of this being even important as a
priority. When it comes to priorities he thinks that the best indicator of if economic development working
is if it is reducing unemployment, is it reducing poverty. And he doesn’t remember hearing the word
poverty at all here. With “X” amount of money, he would think that with a clear path, they could show
that they reduce poverty by “.0%”, we reduced this demographics unemployment by 2%. By having
nothing, by not setting as a priority, things can sound good and each year you can do things, such as the

12/10/14 JEDO Meeting Minutes
32




LAW OFFICES

COFFMAN, DeFRIES & NOTHERN

H. HURST COFFMAN, 4.0,

S. LUCKY DeFRIES, J.D.

AUSTIN NOTHERN, J.D., LL.M.
SUSAN KREHBIEL WILLIAM, J.D.
JEFFREY A. WIETHARN, J.D.*
LANCE A: WEEKS, J.D., LL.M.*
JOSHUA A. DECKER, J.D.

SALSO ADMITTED N MISSOURI

Carol Marple

A PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION
534 5. KANSAS AVENUE, SUITE 925
TOPEKA, KANSAS
66603-3407

January 20, 2015

10249 SW Wanamaker Rd.

Wakarusa, KS 66546

Mrs. Marple:

TeLEPHONE (785) 2834-3461
Fax (785) 234-3363

BARNEY J. HEENEY, JR., LL.M. (RET.)
J. R. GROFF, J.D. (2012}
HAROLD R. SCHROEDER, J.D. (19886)
LEONARD H. AXE, S.J.D. U975)

You have requested the number of employees GO Topeka had for

2010 and 2013.

Although GO Topeka does not consider itself to be

a public entity that is generally subject to KORA, it does try to

respond to inquiries from the public.

The number of employees paid

with public funds for those years was 8.28 and 8, respectively.

cc: Doug Kinsinger

. o b - ) (-\\, \

¢

[

Very truly yours,

JURTRE
?
s

,,,,, - e )"\__/..,-—,—’*‘

-

Jeffré§ A. Wietharn
COFFMAN, DeFRIES & NOTHERN
A Profesgional Association

[ UL N

L




{

El A
7 PN
' n 'Q‘i““z Py
Form gn
Department of the Treasury
intemal Revenue Service

*% PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COPY #*%

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Gode (except private foundations)

| Do not enter Social Security numbers on this form as it may be made public.
P Information about Form 990 and its instructions is at vy 0 irs gon/form990

| OMB No, 1545-0047

2013

and ending

A For the 2013 calendar year, or tax year beginning

D Employer identification number

B ggg’cigai‘;e: C Name of organization
FjAddess | GROWTH ORGANIZATION OF TOPEKA/SHAWNEE CO
Names | Dolng Business As ) . 481227900
el Numnber and street (or P.0. box if mail is not delivered to strest address) Room/suite | E Telephone number
Termin- | 120 SE 6TH STREET 110 7852342644
_Jamended)  Gity or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code G Gyoss recelpts § 4,504,738.
[ Japeie=- | TOPEKA, KS 66603 H(a) s this a group-return
pending '\ ame and address of principal office:DOUGLAS 8. KINSINGER for subordinates? ... L_1Yes No
120 SE 6TH STREET, TOPERA, KS 666033513 H(b) Are all subordinates included? DY&S D No

| Taxexempt status: |__1501(c)(8) [X1601(c)(_ 6 )< (nsortno) [T a0a7(a)(t)or [_1527

" If "No," attach a list. {see’instrustions)

J Website: > WWW . TOPEKACHAMBER . ORG

‘H{c) Group exemption number »

K Form of organization: Gorporation_ [ JTrust-[ ] Association [ | Other

[ L. Year of formation: 2 00 O] w state of legal domicile: KiS

Summary

true, correct, gnd to

o | 1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: TO FOSTER A POSITIVE ENVIRONMENT
‘% FOR THE ECONOMIC AND POPULATION GROWTH OF TOPEKA AND SHAWNEE COUNTY .
g 2 Checkthisbox B [ifthe organization discontinued lts operations or disposed of more than 26% of its net assets. i
g | 8 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, e 18)  .........veeerilniicnec s 3 29
g . 4 Number of Independent voting members of the governing body (Part Vi, line 1b) 4 28
2| 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2013 (Part V. line 28) ............cccoooovviiioiicnieriiniicnnn. 5 0
g 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) ......... RV USUUTUR YU TOPUUPTPOR 6 200
;5 7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part Vill, column (C), INe 12 ..o e a 0.
b Net unreldted business taxable Income from Form 990-T, @34 ... 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
|8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 7,043,059. 4,475,377,
£ | 9  Program service revenue (Part VIll, line 2g) 42,078. 29,162,
é 10 Investment income (Part Vill, column (A), lines 3,4, and 7d) .......cooccooomorovorseersrrnrn 2;487. 199,
11 Other revenue (Part Vill, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9¢, 10c, and 116) _..coovoreriverecnes 0. 0.
12" Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11, (must equal Part VIIl, column (A), line 12} ......... 7,087,624, 4,504,738.
13  Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3)  ........ccoooivrvcinienn, 0. 0.
14 Bepefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), ine 4) ._........ooovrvvveerrercc. : 0. 0..
915 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) ._....... B72,776. 906,597.
2 | 16a Professional fundralsing fees (Part IX, column (A), line 116).........c.cc.coovereuorrcrccuriocrens 0,
;“1: b Total fundralsing expenses (Part X, column (D), line 25) P> 0.
W 147 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines T1a-11d, 116246) ... "0, 2,321,665, 4,155,321,
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) ..................... 3,194,441, 5,061,918,
.| 19 Revenue less sxpenses. Subtract fine 18 from line 12 ...cveeriiieiciieiicsneee e, 3,893,183, ~557,180.
§,§ oo Beginning of Current Year End of Year
@w=| 20 Total assets (Part X, N8 16)  ..ovoiviviiicrcee et 22,009,263.| 23,600,570.
;ﬁg 21 Total liabilties (PArt X, M€ 26)  ....oooioooeooooosoeeeeoeee oo eese s emsaesse e 9,973,170, 12,121,657.
Z7| 22 Net assels or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from INe 20 w.ovcevvversiciesnisinninen. 12,036,093.] 11,478,913,

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and befief, it is
gte. Daclaration f preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

‘ { ricder 2 S7is/14
Sign Signatuygfof officer . pate” " '
Here .DOUGLAS S. KINSINGER, PRESIDENT
Type or print name and title j
Ptint/Typa preparer's name Pregdrer's signatur Date ceek [ || PTIN
Paid PEPPER. DAVID %%&{ g%fiﬂ/ 5/‘{//'7‘ gelf—emplowd P00451431
Preparer |Firm's name p CBIZ MHM, TLLC "/ lrmsemnp  34-1857238
Use Only | Firm's address > 990 SW FAIRLAWN ROAD - o
TOPEKA, XS 66606 Phoneno.785-272-3176
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see INSIUGHONS) ...eccrereecenisirns s, Yes [_INo
Form 990 (2013)

32001 102018 LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions,




GROWTH ORGANIZATION OF TOPEKA/SHAWNEE CO 48-1227900 Ppage10

Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A). :
Check If Schedule O contains aresponse of note fo anyjinein this Part IX v ooeeeinninin i s
: - ] A B) © D
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total expenses Program service Management and Fundralsing
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIIL expenses { | expenses

1

Grants and other assistance to governments and
organizations in the United States. See Part IV, tine 21

2 Grants and other assistance to individuals In
the United States. See Part IV, ine 22 .........
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outside the
United States. See Part IV, llnes 15 and 16 ...
4 - Benefits paid to or for members ....................
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees ..o, 238,598.
6 Gompensation nof Ingluded ahove, to disqualified
persohs (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
. persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) .........
7  Other salarles and Wages ..............cccoceeevens 509,261.
8  Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 22,125,
9 Otheremployee bensfits ... 87 r 8109 .
10 Payroll taxes ................ O 48,804.
i1 Fees for services (non-employees):
a8 Management . _........cceierormenineeerseronsns
B LAl ..o 44,044.
€ AGCOUMTNG ,....civerereeerierienerir e e 66,205.
d Lobbying .....coveevicieeennd Bvterersesnesnnsaeenes 18,000.
" e Professional fundraising services. See Part 1V, line 17
f. Investment management fees ......................
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25,
column (A) amount, list line 11 expenses on Sch 0.) 32,137.
12 Advertising and promotion  _..........cccoveenne. 183 1 216.].
13 Offlce eXPenses .. ....coevvveeceveccvrrenee v, 40,434.
14 Information technology .........ooveeeeeeereeen, 35,608.
15 Royallles ..o . -
16 OGGUPANGY .....oooercreereecinre e en e 88,516.
A7 Travel .o 21,808.
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings ... 108,692.
2L S 0= 1= SO 4
21 Payments to affiliates ...............coocmrierrernrern '
22 Depreclation, depletion, and amortization ..... ;
28 INSUFANGOE  .......ccovereirieeereereneinieemnesesrnnene
24 Other expenses, ltemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellanepus expenses in line 24e. If ling
24e amotnt exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A)
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.) ......
a INCENTIVES 3,149, .
b PROSPECT EXPENSE 109,629.
¢ OTHER EXPENSE 52,716.
d VISIONING EXPENSE 50,000.
e All other expenses 124,726.
25 _Total functignal expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 5,061,918.
26  Joint costs. Gomplete this line only ifthe organization

reported In column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Cheok here |1 iffolowing SOP 982 (ASC 956-720)

332010 10-20-13

Form 990 (2013)
19




Hazelwood Teen Starts His Own I'T Company

Jaylen Bledsoe, an eighth grade student at Hazelwood West
Middle School, is the chief executive officer of a start-up
information technology company: Bledsoe Technologies.
By Candace Jarrett (Patch Staff)March 12, 2012 at 12:32am

You could say that Jaylen Bledsoe, an eighth grade student at ,
began life a bit accelerated.

A member of GALACTIC, the 's (HSD) gifted education program,
more likely than not he is the only 13-year-old at school who is also
the chief executive officer of a start-up information technology
company he named Bledsoe Technologies.

‘I don’t see many eighth graders do the things that he does but it's
all his doing,” said Curtis Bledsoe, Jaylen's father. “I'm very proud
of him.”

Jaylen decided to launch his IT company that is also a web design
firm, about a year ago. Besides web design and IT, Jaylen said his
company can do web development, photography, videography,
computer repair, search engine optimization, voice recordings and
consulting. All of which he found a love for in his GALACTIC
courses.

"Three years ago, when | was in GALACTIC, | took a video
editing course and it really interested me,” he said. “But |

e .

wanted to learn how to do more.”

And so he did just that.

The Makings of Bledsoe Technologies

1
i

oy ("‘E

;\& i . £~ I it " /" ~ !:’
| czoqe (@eﬁ%ﬁ - bl Lomrunds Hondouse
1

et e e




should be included in state and local materials. WIOA allows states, local areas, and other
partners to have additional identifiers as well. After consultations, the Department will issue
guidance and technical assistance on identifier implementation.

IMPROVING SERVICES TO JOB SEEKERS AND EMPLOYERS

Q. How does WIOA change the youth formula program?

WIOA requires the youth formula program spend at least 75 percent of funds on out-of-school
youth, compared to 30 percent under WIA. The Act also changes youth eligibility requirements
by establishing separate criteria for out-of-school and in-school youth, including removing
income eligibility requirements for most out-of-school youth and raising the eligible age for such
youth to 16 through 24. In-school youth age eligibility continue to be ages 14-21, as in WIA.
WIOA places a new priority on work-based learning by providing that at least 20 percent of local
youth formula funds be used for work experiences such as summer jobs, pre-apprenticeship
training, on-the-job training and internships that have academic and occupational education as a
component. WIOA also links services to the attainment of secondary school diplomas, entry into
postsecondary education and career readiness, and to the attainment of postsecondary credentials
aligned with in-demand industry sectors or occupations. Additional allowable activities include
financial literacy education and entrepreneurial skills training.

Q. How does WIOA improve services to unemployment insurance (UI) claimants?

WIOA increases connections between the job training and employment services and the UI
system. UI claimants will benefit from the enhanced services, including the labor exchange
services and career counseling that are included as career services under title I, and activities that
assist workers in identifying and obtaining jobs in in-demand industries and occupations.

WIOA amends Wagner-Peyser Employment Services to include as allowable activities eligibility
assessments of Ul claimants and the provision of referrals to and application assistance for an
array of training and education programs and resources. Co-locating Employment Services in
American Job Centers also will result in UI claimants having enhanced access to services.

Q. How does WIOA improve services to individuals with disabilities through American
Job Centers?

WIOA makes several significant changes to help individuals with disabilities access services and
improve employment outcomes. Both the State and the Local Plans are to describe how the
American Job Center delivery system will comply with the nondiscrimination requirements
regarding physical and programmatic accessibility of facilities, programs, services, technology
and materials, including appropriate staff training and support. The criteria for certifying
American Job Centers also includes assessing physical and programmatic accessibility. The Act
includes individuals with disabilities in the definition of individuals with barriers to employment,
for whom strategies must be identified in State and local plans and performance outcomes
identified and reported.




AFRIC
ASIAN
DIS
FEM
HISP
NATIV
NONE
OTHER
SMALL

InvoiceDateFrom

Total Number of invoices

)
01/01/2014

28
14

434
20

4,112
13,763
7,763

26,136

Vendor Diversity Report

lnv:)iceDateTo 12/31/2014

$89,961.66
$44,148.00
$2,243.88
$701,918.84
$11,223.67
$840.00
$6,172,958.84
$54,113,411.48
$20,972,420.87

Total Invoice Amount $82,109,127.24

T T P e s




Population by Sex and Minority Status

2013

Both Sexes

Male

Kansas
Female

Population Number  Percent Number  Percent Number  Percent
All Persons 2,868,107 100.0 1,425,049 49.7 1,443,058 50.3
White 2,449,273 85.4 1,213,043 423 1,236,230 43.1
Black or African American 164,299 57 83,462 29 80,837 2.8
American Indian and Alaska Native 23,958 0.8 11,945 0.4 12,013 04
Asian 70,408 2.5 33,777 1.2 36,631 1.3
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 1,887 01 - 999 0.0 888 0.0
Some Other Race 65,807 23 - 35,044 1.2 30,763 1.1
Two or More Races 92475 3.2 46,779 1.6 45696 16
Hispanic or Latino {of any race) 308,122 10.7 160,443 5.6 147,679 5.1
Hispanic origin is considered an ethnicity, not a race. Hispanics may be of any race.
Labor Force Estimates by Sex and Minority Status 2013 Kansas
- Both Sexes Male Female
Civilian Labor Force Number  Percent Number  Percent Number  Percent
Alf Persons 1,491,412 100.0 785,029 52.6 706,383 474
White 1,299,613 87.1 685,193 459 614,420 41.2
Black or African American 77,558 52 37,956 2.5 39,602 2.7
American Indian and Alaska Native 11,633 0.8 5,925 04 5,708 0.4
Asian 36,898 2.5 19,111 13 17,787 1.2
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 919 0.1 551 0.0 368 0.0
Some Other Race 33,118 2.2 20,254 1.4 12,864 0.8
Two or More Races 31,673 2.1 16,039 1.1 15,634 1.0
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 140,364 94 81,314 55 59,050 4.0
Employment Both Sexes Male Female
Number  Percent Number  Percent Number  Percent
All Persons 1,387,071 100.0 727,708 52.5 659,363 475
White 1,220,194 88.0 641,128 46.2 579,066 4.7
Black or African American 64,885 4.7 31,088 2.2 33,797 24
American Indian and Alaska Native 10,175 0.7 5,182 0.4 4,993 0.4
Asian 34,181 2.5 17,782 1.3 16,399 1.2
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 747 0.1 445 0.0 302 0.0
Some Other Race 29,690 2.1 18,505 13 11,185 0.8
Two or More Races 27,199 2.0 13,578 1.0 13,621 1.0
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 127,110 9.2 74,482 54 52,628 3.8
Unemployment Both Sexes Male Female
Number  Percent Number  Percent Number  Percent
Al Persons 104,341 100.0 57,321 54.9 47,020 45.1
White 79,419 76.1 44,065 422 35,354 339
Black or African American 12,673 12.1 6,868 6.6 5,805 56
American Indian and Alaska Native 1,458 1.4 743 0.7 715 0.7
Asian 2,717 26 1,329 1.3 1,388 1.3
Native Hawaiian and Other Pagific Islander 172 0.2 106 0.1 66 0.1
Some Other Race 3,428 33 1,749 1.7 1,679 16
Two or More Races 4474 43 2,461 24 2,013 1.9
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 13,254 12.7 6,832 6.5 6,422 6.2
Unemployment Rate Both Sexes Male Female
Unemployment Rate Unemployment Rate Unemployment Rate
All Persons 7.0 73 6.7
White 6.1 6.4 58
4L, Black or African American 16.3 Y 181 4 147
American Indian and Alaska Native 12.5 125 12.5
Asian 74 7.0 78
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 18.7 19.2 17.9
Some Other Race 10.4 8.6 13.1
Two or More Races 141 15.3 12.9
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 9.4 8.4 10.9




Population by Sex and Minority Status 2013 Topeka MSA
Population Both Sexes Male Female
Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
All Persons 234,089 100.0 114,371 48.9 119,718 511
White 198,883 85.0 96,963 414 101,920 43.5
Black or African American 14,796 6.3 7,292 3.1 7,504 32
American Indian and Alaska Native 3,087 1.3 1,561 0.7 1,526 0.7
Asian 2,261 1.0 885 0.4 1,376 0.6
Native Hawalian and Other Pacific Islander 99 0.0 72 0.0 27 0.0
Some Other Race 5324 2.3 2,781 12 2,543 1.1
Two or More Races 9,639 4.1 4,817 2.4 4,822 21
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 21,258 9.1 10,643 45 10,615 4.5
Hispanic origin is considered an ethnicity, not a race. Hispanics may be of any race.
Labor Force Estimates by Sex and Minority Status 2013 Topeka MSA
- Both Sexes Male Female
Civilian Labor Force Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
All Persons 119,945 100.0 60,996 50.9 58,949 491
White 104,948 87.5 53,369 445 51,579 43.0
Black or African American 6,850 57 3,315 2.8 3,535 29
American Indian and Alaska Native 1,496 1.2 811 0.7 685 0.6
Asian 1,061 09 463 04 598 0.5
Native Hawaiian and Other Pagific Islander 72 0.1 60 0.1 12 0.0
Some Other Race 2,511 241 1,406 1.2 1,105 0.9
Two or More Races 3,007 2.5 1,572 1.3 1,435 1.2
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 9,359 7.8 5,058 42 4,301 3.8
Employment Both Sexes Male Female
Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
All Persons 110,893 100.0 55,866 504 55,027 49.6
White 97,699 88.1 49,228 444 48471 437
Black or African American 5,887 53 2,788 25 3,009 28
American Indian and Alaska Native 1,357 1.2 734 0.7 623 0.6
Asian 1,024 0.9 432 04 592 0.5
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 72 0.1 60 0.1 12 0.0
Some Other Race 2,300 2.1 1,302 1.2 998 0.9
Two or More Races 2,554 23 1,322 1.2 1,232 1.1
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 8,537 7.7 4,598 44 3,939 36
Unemployment Both Sexes Male Female
Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
All Persons 9,052 100.0 5,130 56.7 3,922 43.3
White 7,249 80.1 4,141 457 3,108 34.3
Black or African American 963 10.6 527 5.8 436 4.8
American Indian and Alaska Native 139 1.5 77 0.9 62 0.7
Asian 37 04 31 0.3 6 0.1
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0
Some Other Race 211 2.3 104 11 107 1.2
Two or More Races 453 50 250 2.8 203 2.2
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 822 9.1 460 5.1 362 4.0
Both Sexes Male Female
Unemployment Rate Unemployment Rate Unemployment Rate Unemployment Rate
All Persons 1.5 8.4 6.7
White 6.9 7.8 6.0
« Black or African American 141 % 15.9 <« 123
American Indian and Alaska Native 9.3 9.5 9.1
Asian 35 6.7 1.0
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 0.0 0.0 0.0
Some Other Race 8.4 74 9.7
Two or More Races 15.1 15.9 14.1
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 8.8 9.4 8.4




Popuiation by Sex and Minority Status 2013 Shawnee
. Both Sexes Male Female
Population Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Al Persons 178,378 100.0 86,369 48.4 92,009 51.6
White 146,488 82.1 70,693 39.6 75,795 42.5
Black or African American 14,479 8.1 7,092 4.0 7,387 4.1
American Indian and Alaska Native 1,827 1.0 961 0.5 866 0.5
Asian 2,120 1.2 836 0.5 1,284 0.7
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 87 0.0 66 0.0 21 0.0
Some Other Race 5,244 29 2,742 15 2,502 1.4
Two or More Races 8,133 4.6 3,979 22 4,154 23
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 19,773 111 9,953 5.6 9,820 5.5
Hispanic origin is considered an ethnicity, not a race. Hispanics may be of any race,
Labor Force Estimates by Sex and Minority Status 2013 Shawnee
. Both Sexes Male Female
Civilian Labor Force Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
All Persons 91,030 100.0 45,955 50.5 45,075 49,5
White 77475 85.1 39,069 429 38,406 42.2
Black or African American 6,726 74 3,228 3.5 3,498 3.8
American Indian and Alaska Native 851 0.9 529 0.6 322 04
Asian 983 1.1 424 0.5 559 0.6
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 66 0.4 56 0.1 10 0.0
Some Other Race 2477 2.7 1,388 15 1,089 1.2
Two or More Races 2,452 27 1,261 14 1,191 1.3
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 8,683 9.5 4,778 5.2 3,905 43
Both Sexes Male Female
Employment Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
All Persons 83,861 100.0 41,901 50.0 41,960 50.0
White 71,949 85.8 35,929 4238 36,020 430
Black or African American 5,767 6.9 2,705 3.2 3,062 3.7
American Indian and Alaska Native 782 09 487 0.6 295 0.4
Asian 946 1.1 393 0.5 553 07
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific islander 66 0.1 56 0.1 10 0.0
Some Other Race 2,268 2.7 1,284 15 984 12
Two or More Races 2,083 25 1,047 1.2 1,036 1.2
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 7,913 94 4,350 5.2 3,563 4.2
Both Sexes Male Female
Unemployment Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
All Persons 7,169 100.0 4,054 56.5 3,115 435
White 5,526 774 3,140 43.8 2,386 333
Black or African American 959 134 523 73 436 6.1
American indian and Alaska Native 69 1.0 42 0.6 27 04
Asian 37 05 3 04 6 0.1
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0
Some Other Race 209 2.9 104 15 105 1.5
Two or More Races 369 5.1 214 3.0 155 2.2
Hispanic or Latino (of any race} 770 10.7 428 6.0 342 4.8
Both Sexes Male Female
Unemployment Rate Unemployment Rate Unemployment Rate Unemployment Rate
Alf Persons 7.9 8.8 6.9
White 7.1 8.0 6.2
Black or African American 14.3 & 16.2 & 125
American Indian and Alaska Native 8.1 7.9 8.4
Asian 3.8 7.3 1.1
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 0.0 0.0 0.0
Some Other Race 84 7.5 9.6
Two or More Races 15.0 17.0 13.0
Hispanic or Latino {of any race) 8.9 9.0 8.8

96




